
  

 

Meeting of the  

 

LICENSING SUB 
COMMITTEE 

__________________________________ 
 

Thursday, 12 December 2013 at 6.00 p.m. 
_______________________________________ 

 
A G E N D A 

______________________________________ 
 

VENUE 
The Council Chamber, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 

London, E14 2BG 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, please contact: 
 
Simmi Yesmin, Democratic Services,  
 
Tel: 020 7364 4120, E-mail: simmi.yesmin@towerhamlets.gov.uk  

 
 
 



 
 

Public Information 
Attendance at meetings. 
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis.  
 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings.  
No photography or recording without advanced permission.  

 
Mobile telephones 
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting.  

 
Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.      

 
Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall.  
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place  
Blackwall station: Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall.  
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf  
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm) 

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx)  

Meeting access/special requirements.  
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda  

     
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned. 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.   
 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date.  
 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users. 

 
 



 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 12 December 2013 

 
6.00 p.m. 

 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 
4) 

 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Monitoring Officer. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. RULES OF PROCEDURE  5 - 16  

 To note the rules of procedure which are attached for 
information. 

  

4. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  17 - 44  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held 
on; 

 

• 29th October 2013 

• 6th November 2013 (2pm) 

• 6th November 2013 (5pm) 

• 12th November 2013  

• 20th November 2013 
 
 

  

5. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION    

5 .1 Application to Review the Premises Licence for 
Joiners Arms, 116 - 118 Hackney Road, London E2 
7QL   

45 - 440 Weavers 

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR 
CONSIDERS URGENT  

  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 
 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.    
 
Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.   
 
 
Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) 
 
You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected. 
 
You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website. 
 
Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI). 
 
A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.    
 
 
Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings 
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:- 

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and 
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business. 

 
If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:- 

- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 
or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and  

- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 
decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision  

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.   
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register.  
 
 
Further advice 
 
For further advice please contact:- 

John Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services, 020 7364 4204 
 

Page 2



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 
(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 

RRUULLEESS  OOFF  PPRROOCCEEDDUURREE  

GGOOVVEERRNNIINNGG  AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONNSS  FFOORR  

PPRREEMMIISSEESS  LLIICCEENNCCEESS    

AANNDD  OOTTHHEERR  PPEERRMMIISSSSIIOONNSS  

UUNNDDEERR  TTHHEE  LLIICCEENNSSIINNGG  AACCTT  22000033  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



 

 

1. Interpretation 
 
1.1 These Procedures describe the way in which hearings will be conducted under 

the Licensing Act 2003, as set out in the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 (as amended). The Procedures take into account the 
Licensing Act (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 
2005.  The Procedures also include the time limits within which a hearing must 
commence (see Appendix A) and will be used by the Licensing Committee and 
Licensing Sub-Committee when conducting hearings. 

 
1.2 The Hearings Regulations provide (Regulation 21) that a Licensing Authority 

shall, subject to the provisions of those Regulations, determine for itself the 
procedure to be followed at a hearing. 

 
1.3 These Procedures, therefore, set out the way in which Licensing Sub-

Committee Meetings will be conducted under the Licensing Act 2003, following 
the requirements of the Hearings Regulations. Wherever appropriate they have 
included the procedures followed successfully when determining licence 
applications under previous legislation. 

 
1.4 Proceedings will not be rendered void only as the result of failure to comply 

with any provision of the Hearings Regulations (Regulation 31). 
 
 
2. Composition of Sub-Committee 
 
2.1 The Sub-Committee will consist of no less than three members and no 

business shall be transacted unless at least three members of the Licensing 
Committee are present and able to form a properly constituted Licensing Sub-
Committee.  In such cases the Chair shall have a second or casting vote. The 
Councillor for the ward in which the applicant's premises are situated, or where 
either the applicant or the objector resides, shall not normally form part of the 
Sub-Committee for that item on the agenda. 

 
 
3. Timescales 
 
3.1  Most hearings must take place within 20 working days from the last date for  

representations to be made with the following exceptions: 
 

Within 10 working days from the last date for the police to object to: 
- conversion of an existing licence; 
- conversion of an existing club certificate; 
- an application for a personal licence by an existing justices licence holder; 

and 
 
Within 10 working days from the date the Licensing Authority receives the 
notice for a review of the premises licence following a closure order. 
Within 7 working days from the last date for the police to object to: 
- a temporary event notice. 

Page 6



 

 

 
Within 5 working days from the last date for the police to object to: 
- an interim authority notice (Note: the police must give notice of their 

objection within 48 hours of being given a copy of the notice). 
 
Note: Where a hearing is likely to take longer than one day, the Authority 

must arrange for the hearing to take place on consecutive days. 
 

3.2 Timescale for notice of hearings to be given 
 
 
In most cases, the Authority shall give notice of a hearing no later than 10 
working days before the first day on which the hearing is to be held. The 
following are exceptions to that rule: 

 
 At least five working days notice must be given to the parties of the date of a 

hearing for determination of: 
 

- conversion of an existing licence 
- conversion of an existing club certificate 
- application for a personal licence by the holder of a justices licence 
- review of a premises licence following a closure order 

 
At least two days notice must be given to the parties to a hearing for 
determination of: 

 
- police objection to an interim authority notice 
- police objection to a temporary event notice  

 
3.3 Persons who must be notified of a hearing 
 

The persons who must be notified of a hearing are set out below as a 
summary:  
 
- any applicant for any licence or certificate or a temporary event notice. 

 
- any person who has made relevant representations about an application 

for a licence or for review of a licence (note for any representations 
deemed frivolous, vexatious or repetitious under Section 18(7)(c) or 
similar sections of the Licensing Act 2003 the objector must be notified of 
the Authority’s decision as soon as possible and in any event before any 
hearing). 

• a person specified as a Designated Premises Supervisor 

• an interim authority 

• transfer of a premises licence 

• a temporary event notice 

• a personal licence 
 
 

Page 7



 

 

- Any holder of a premises licence or club premises certificate where: 

• application is made for review 
 

Note:  Anyone given notice of a hearing is a party and that is how that 
expression is used in these Rules of Procedure. 

 
3.4  Information to be provided in a notice of hearing 
 

The information that must be included in a notice of hearing includes:  
- The procedure to be followed at the hearing; 
- The right of the party to attend and to be assisted or represented by any 

person whether legally qualified or not; 
- The ability to give further information in support of their application where 

the Authority has sought clarification; 
- The right to question any other party if given permission by the Authority; 
- The right to address the Authority; 
- Notice of any particular points on which the Authority will want clarification 

at the hearing; 
- The consequences if a party does not attend or is not represented at the 

hearing; 
- For certain hearings particular documents must accompany the notice 

which is sent to parties informing them of the hearing.  Reference must be 
made to Schedule 3 of the Hearings Regulations for this purpose. 

 
3.5  Failure of Parties to Attend the Hearing 
 

If a party has informed the Authority that they will not be attending or be 
represented at the hearing, it may proceed in their absence. 
 
If a party does not give notice that they will not be attending but fails to attend 
and is not represented, the Authority may either: 

 
a) adjourn the hearing if it considers it to be necessary in the public interest 

or 
b) hold the hearing in the party’s absence 

 
If the Authority holds the hearing in the absence of a party, it will consider at the 
hearing the application, representation or notice given by the party. 
 
If the Authority adjourns the hearing to a specified date it must forthwith the  
parties of the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned. 
 
 
Note: Transition hearings cannot be adjourned to a date beyond the date that 

which causes an application to deemed as determined by default. 
 
[ 
 
 

Page 8



 

 

4. Procedure at the Hearing 
 
4.1 The usual order of proceedings will be as set out below. The Sub-Committee 

will allow the parties an equal maximum time period in which to give further 
information in support of their application, representation or response. Where 
the Authority has given notice that it will seek clarification on that point at the 
hearing or where permission has been given to call any further persons to 
give supporting evidence, the Sub-Committee may allow the parties to 
question any other party and to address the Licensing Sub-Committee. The 
Sub-Committee will seek, in all cases, to avoid repetition of points (whether 
included in written material or otherwise), irrelevancy, or any abuse of the 
procedure. 

 
At the beginning of the hearing the procedure to be followed will be explained 
to the parties. The hearing will, so far as is possible, take the form of a 
discussion, led by the Sub-Committee. Cross-examination will not be permitted 
unless the Sub-Committee considers it necessary. 

 
i) The Chair will begin by explaining how the proceedings will be 

conducted, and indicate any time limits that may apply to the parties to 
the application. 

 
ii) The report will be briefly introduced by an Officer of the Licensing 

Section summarising the application. 
 

iii) The Sub-Committee will then consider any requests by a party for any 
other person to be heard at the hearing in accordance with the 
Regulations. Permission will not be unreasonably withheld provided 
proper notice has been given. 

 
iv) A summary of the nature and extent of the application by the applicant or 

their representative. This should be brief, avoid repetition of material 
already available to the Committee in the Officer’s report or otherwise, 
and include any reasons why an exception should be made to the 
Council’s Licensing Policy, where appropriate. The submission may be 
followed by the evidence of any person who has been given permission 
by the Committee to give supporting evidence on behalf of the applicant. 

 
v) A summary of the reasons for making representations about the 

application by any interested party. This should be brief and avoid any 
repetition of information already made available to the Committee either 
in the Officer’s report or otherwise.  That will be followed by the evidence 
of any person who has been given permission by the Panel to give 
supporting evidence on behalf of the objectors. 

 
vi) A summary of the reasons for making representations by or on behalf of 

any Responsible Authority. This should be brief and avoid any repetition 
of information already made available to the Licensing Sub-Committee 
either in the Officer’s report or otherwise. That will be followed by the 

Page 9



 

 

evidence of any person who has been given permission by the Panel to 
give supporting evidence on behalf of the Responsible Authority. 

 
vii) Members of the Sub-Committee may ask any questions of any party or 

other person appearing at the hearing. 
 
4.2 The following requirements of the Hearing Regulations will also be followed by 

the Licensing Sub-Committee:  
 

a) The Sub-Committee will be guided by legal principles in determining 
whether evidence is relevant and fairly admissible. In particular, hearsay 
evidence may be admitted before the Sub-Committee but consideration 
will always be given to the degree of weight, if any, to be attached to such 
evidence in all the relevant circumstances. 

 
b) The Sub-Committee may impose a time limit on the oral representations 

to be made by any party. In considering whether to do so, and in 
considering the length of any such time limit, the Sub-Committee will take 
into account the importance of ensuring that all parties receive a fair 
hearing, and the importance of ensuring that all applications are 
determined expeditiously and without undue delay. 

 
c) In considering the time limits referred to in (b) above, regard must be had 

to the requirement to allow each party an equal amount of time. 
 
4.3  When considering any representations or notice made by a party, the Authority 

may take into account documentary or other information produced by a party in 
support of their application, representation or notice, either: 

 
a) before the hearing, or 
 
b) with the consent of all other parties, by the Sub-Committee at the hearing  

 
The Authority will disregard any information given by a party, or any other 
person appearing at the hearing, which is not relevant to: 

 
a) their application, representation or notice; and 
 
b) the promotion of the licensing objectives or the crime prevention objective 

where notice has been given by the police. 
 
4.4 All hearings shall take place in public save that: 

 
a) The Licensing Sub-Committee may exclude the public from all or part of a 

hearing where it considers that, on balance, it is in the public interest to do 
so. 

 
b) The parties and any person representing them may be excluded in the 

same way as another member of the public 

Page 10



 

 

c) The Licensing Sub-Committee may require any person attending the 
hearing who in their opinion is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave 
the hearing and may: 

 
- refuse to permit the person to return; or 
- allow them to return only on such conditions as the authority may 

specify. 
 
4.5 Any person so excluded may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the 

Authority in writing, any information which, they would have been entitled to 
give orally had they not been required to leave. Where there are a number of 
items on the agenda, the adjournment of that item for a short period, whilst 
another item is heard, may allow this process to be carried out effectively. 

 
 
5. Determination of Application – Time Limits 
 
5.1 The Licensing Sub-Committee must make its determination at the conclusion of 

the hearing where the application is for: 
 

a) Conversion or variation of an existing licence during transition 
b) Conversion or variation of an existing club certificate during transition 
c) A review of a premises licence following a closure order 
d) A personal licence by the holder of a justices licence 
e) A counter notice following police objection to a temporary event notice 
 

5.2 In any other case the Authority must make its determination within the period of 
five working days, beginning with the day, or the last day, on which the hearing 
was held. 

 
5.3 Where a hearing has been dispensed with because all of the parties have 

agreed that a hearing is unnecessary (and the Authority has agreed, giving 
notice to the parties in writing), then the Authority must make its determination 
within 10 working days beginning with the day the authority gives such notices 
to the parties. The Team Leader (Licensing) shall be authorised to make the 
determination on behalf of the Authority. 

 
 
6. Record of Proceedings 
 
6.1 The Authority must arrange for a record to be taken of the hearing in a 

permanent and intelligible form and for that record to be kept for six years from 
the date of determination.  Where an appeal is brought against a determination 
by the Authority, the record must be kept for six years from the date of disposal 
of the appeal. 

Page 11



 

 

 
7. Irregularities 
 
7.1 Proceedings will not be rendered void only as the result of failure to comply with 

any provision of the Hearings Regulations 
 

7.2 Clerical mistakes in any document recording a determination of the Authority, or 
errors arising in such a document as the result of an accidental slip or omission, 
may be corrected by the Authority. 

 
 

8. Notices 
 

8.1 In accordance with the Regulations, any notices must be given in writing. Such 
a notice may be sent electronically, providing: 
 
a) it can be accessed by the recipient in a legible form; 
b) it is capable of being reproduced as a document for future reference; 
c) the recipient has agreed in advance to receive it in such form;  
d) a copy is sent in documentary form forthwith to the recipient. 

 
9. Appeals 
 
9.1 Either those who have made an application or those who have made 

representations on an application may appeal to the Magistrates Court. 
 
Note: An appeal must be commenced within twenty one days beginning with 

the day on which the appellant was notified by the Licensing Authority 
of their decision.  

 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

Application Type Period of Time within 
which Hearing to be Held 
(after reps have closed) 

Notice 
Period of 
Hearing 

Notice Sent To Attendee 
Reply 
Form 
Back In 
 

Section 18 (3)(a) (determination of 
application for premises license) 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
People who have made representations 

5 working 
days 

Section 35(3)(a) (determination of 
application to vary premises 
licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
People who have made representations 

5 working 
days 

Section 39(3)(a) (determination of 
application to vary premises licence to 
specify individual as premises 
supervisor). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant (premises holder); 
Chief Officer of Police who has given notice; 
The proposed premises supervisor 

5 working 
days 

Section 44(5)(a) (determination of 
application for transfer of premises 
licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice; 
The present holder of the premises licence  

5 working 
days 

Section 52(2) (determination of 
application for review of premises 
licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

The holder of the premises licence of where 
application applies; 
People who have made representations; 
Applicant 

5 working 
days 

Section 120(7)(a) (determination of 
application for grant of personal 
licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

5 working 
days 

Section 121(6)(a) (determination of 
application for the renewal of 
personal licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

5 working 
days 

Section 124(4)(a) (convictions 
coming to light after grant or 
renewal of personal licence). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

The holder of the licence; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

5 working 
days 

Paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8 
(determination of application by 
holder of a justices’ licence for 
grant of personal licence). 

10 working days 5 working 
days  

Applicant; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

2 working 
days 

P
age 13



 

 

Application Type Period of Time within 
which Hearing to be Held 
(after reps have closed) 

Notice 
Period of 
Hearing 

Notice Sent To Attendee 
Reply 
Form 
Back In 
 

Section 31(3)(a) (determination of 
application for a provisional 
statement). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant; 
People who have made representations 

5 working 
days 

Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of 
interim authority notice following 
police objection). 

5 working days 2 working 
days 

The person who has given Notice; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

1 working 
day 

Section 72(3)(a) (determination of 
application for club premises 
certificate). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant (club); 
People who have made representations 

5 working 
days 

Section 85(3) (determination of 
application to vary club premises 
certificate). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Applicant (club); 
People who have made representations 

5 working 
days 

Section 88(2) (determination of 
application for review of club 
premises certificate). 

20 working days 10 working 
days 

Club that holds club premises certificate; 
People who have made representations; 
Applicant 
 

5 working 
days 

Section 105(2)(a) (counter notice 
following police objection to 
temporary event notice) 
. 

7 working days 2 working 
days 

The premises user; 
Chief Officer who has given Notice 

1 working 
day 

Section 167(5)(a) (review of 
premises licence following closure 
order). 

10 working days 5 working 
days 

The holder of the premises licence; 
People who have made representations 

2 working 
days 

Paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8 
(determination of application for 
conversion of existing licence). 

10 working days 5 working 
days 

Applicant; 
Chief Officer of Police who has given Notice 

2 working 
days 

Paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8 
(determination of application for 
conversion of existing club 
certificate). 

10 working days 5 working 
days 

Applicant (club) 
 
Chief Officer who has given Notice 

2 working 
days 

P
age 14



 

 

APPENDIX B 
 
 

Regulation 8 
 
 
 Action Following receipt of notice of hearing 

 
1. 
 

A party shall give to the authority within the period of time provided for in the 
following provisions of this regulation a notice stating: 

(a)
. 

whether he intends to attend or be represented at the hearing; 

(b)
. 

whether he considers a hearing to be unnecessary. 

2. 
 
 
 
 
 

In a case where a party wishes any other person (other than the person he 
intends to represent him at the hearing) to appear at the hearing, the notice 
referred to in paragraph (1) shall contain a request for permission for such 
other person to appear at the hearing accompanied by details of the name of 
that person and a brief description of the point or points on which that 
person may be able to assist the authority in relation to the application, 
representations or notice of the party making the request. 
 

3. In the case of a hearing under: 
(a)
. 

section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of interim authority notice following police 
objection), or 

(b)
. 

section 105(2)(a) (counter notice following police objection to temporary 
event notice), 

 the party shall give the notice no later than one working day before the day 
or the first day on 
which the hearing is to be held. 
 

4. In the case of a hearing under: 
(a)
. 

section 167(5)(a) (review of premises licence following closure order), 

(b)
. 

paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for conversion 
of existing licence), 

(c)
. 

paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for 
conversion of existing club certificate), or 

(d)
. 

paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application by holder of 
justices’ licence for grant of personal licence), 

 the party shall give the notice no later than two working days before the day 
or the first day on which the hearing is to be held. 

5. In any other case, the party shall give the notice no later than five working 
days before the day or the first day on which the hearing is to be held. 

 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 29/10/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 6.40 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 29 OCTOBER 2013 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Peter Golds (Chair) 
 
Councillor Marc Francis 
Councillor Joshua Peck 
 
  
 
Other Councillors Present: 
 Nil 
 
 
Officers Present: 
 
Luke Elford – (Lawyer – Enforcement and Litigation Team) 
Alex Lisowski – (Licensing Officer) 
Alan Ingram – (Democratic Services) 

 
Applicants In Attendance: 
 Warren Dent                               -     Bethnal Green Working Men’s Club 
Paul West                                    -     Bethnal Green Working Men’s Club 
Alan Penn                                    -     Bethnal Green Working men’s Club 
Muhammed Bhuiyan                    -     216 Bethnal Green Road 
Abdul Quddas                              -     106 Brick Lane 
 

 
Objectors In Attendance: 
 PC Mark Perry                            -     106 Brick Lane 
 
 
  
 

NOTE:  At 6.30 p.m., Luke Elford (Lawyer, Enforcement and Litigation Team) 
informed those present that there would be a short delay in starting the 
meeting as one of the Sub-Committee Members had experienced traffic 
problems.  The meeting commenced at 6.40 p.m.  
 
 

COUNCILLOR PETER GOLDS (CHAIR), IN THE CHAIR 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 17



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 29/10/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. 
 

3. RULES OF PROCEDURE  
 
The Rules of Procedure were noted. 
 
 

4. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

4.1 Application for a Premises Licence for (Bethnal Green Working Men's 
Club), Ground Floor, First Floor and Second Floor, 42-46 Pollard Row, 
London E2 6NB  
 
It was noted that Joanna Yearwood, who had submitted written 
representations against the application, was not present at the meeting 
although she had requested speaking rights.  Members agreed to proceed 
with hearing the application in Ms Yearwood’s absence, whilst noting her 
written objections. 
 
At the request of the Chair, Alex Lisowski, Licensing Officer, introduced the 
report which detailed the application for a new Premises Licence for Bethnal 
Green Working Men’s Club, Ground Floor, First Floor and Second Floor, 42-
46 Pollard Row, London, E2 6NB.  He added that a representation previously 
made by the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority had now been 
withdrawn as a satisfactory Fire Detection and Alarm System had been 
installed in the premises.  
 
The Evidence 
 
At the request of the Chair, Paul West, acting for the applicant, addressed the 
meeting and, with the agreement of Members, circulated a list of additional 
conditions agreed with the Metropolitan Police and the Environmental Health 
Service and others offered in response to concerns raised by residents.   
 
Mr West commented that the Club had been in operation for over 60 years 
and supported a range of local events and charities.  The current application 
sought to convert the existing premises certificate and licences for various 
parts of the building into a single licence for the premises.  He stated that, 
after taking account of representations, the request to extend licensing hours 
by 30 minutes for sale of alcohol and provision of regulated entertainment had 
been withdrawn.   
 

Page 18



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 29/10/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

In answer to points raised in the written representations, Mr West indicated 
that: 

§ Security was provided by the Club as required by existing conditions. 
§ Patrons were offered boiled sweets at egress and numerous receipts 

were available to substantiate this. 
§ The Club had hosted meetings with residents, who were now happy 

with what had been achieved. 
§ Any reasonable action concerning the provision of metal gates would 

be considered. 
§ The Club had no jurisdiction over smoking on the footway but had 

added a condition to control smoking directly outside the premises. 
§ It was felt that bottles and other litter left in the street emanated from 

other persons in the Bethnal Green area. 
§ A condition had been offered to close the doors of the Club during 

entertainments. 
§ Noise made by cars and motorbikes was not a licensing matter. 
§ There was no intention or inclination for the premises to become a 

nightclub and there would be no extension of licensing hours. 
§ It was considered that persons causing a nuisance in the street were 

not patrons of the Club.  
 
In addition, there had been no further complaints since the premises review in 
2009, instigated by Joanna Yearwood.  Neither the Police nor Environmental 
Health had put forward concerns relating to the Licensing Objectives.  Six 
TENs had been held this year without complaints.  There was, therefore, a 
lack of any real evidence against the application, which should be granted. 
 
In response to questions by Members, the applicants stated that: 

§ On and off-loading of lorries had only taken place during the day when 
film shoots had taken place on the premises and this had occurred 
only once this year. 

§ Security was made available for private parties also and people were 
informed on how to behave when they left.  Security staff remained 
until the premises had been vacated and notices were displayed 
asking patrons to respect residents when they were leaving. 

§ The current premises capacity was 35 covers in the restaurant and 
150 for each of the other floors. 

§ Outside smoking areas were to the rear and one side of the premises 
and would accommodate a total of 25 smokers. 

 
Members retired to consider their decision at 7.00 p.m. and reconvened at 
7.15 p.m. 
 
The Licensing Objectives 
 
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing 
Objectives, the Licensing Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 
 
Consideration 

Page 19



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 29/10/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
Each application must be considered on its own merits and the Chair stated 
that after careful consideration of all verbal and written evidence, the Sub-
Committee had decided to grant the application but with amended hours for 
the sale of alcohol and provision of regulated entertainment.  The further 
conditions offered by the applicant had also been accepted, with a reduction 
in the number of smokers outside at any one time.  These amendments had 
been made in order to address the concerns of “the prevention of crime and 
disorder” and “the prevention of public nuisance”.   
 
Decision 
 
Accordingly, by a unanimous decision the Sub-Committee – 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for a new Premises Licence for Bethnal Green Working 
Men’s Club, Ground Floor, First Floor and Second Floor, 42-46 Pollard Row, 
London, E2 6NB, be GRANTED with conditions. 
 
The sale by retail of alcohol (On and Off sales), Regulated Entertainment 
– Indoors  
Plays, Films, Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of dance 

§ Sunday to Wednesday, from 10:00 hours to 23:00 hours 
§ Thursday, from 10:00 hours to 01:00 hours the following day 
§ Friday and Saturday, from 10:00 hours to 02:30 hours the following 

day 
 
Late Night Refreshment – Indoors 

§ Thursday, from 10:00 hours to 01:00 hours the following day 
§ Friday and Saturday, from 10:00 hours to 02:30 hours the following 

day 
 
Hours Premises are open to the public 

§ Sunday to Wednesday, from 10:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
§ Thursday, from 10:00 hours to 02:00 hours the following day 
§ Friday and Saturday, from 10:00 hours to 03:30 hours the following 

day 
 
Conditions 
 

1. Install and maintain CCTV in accordance with specifications outlined 
on page 65 of the Sub-Committee agenda pack. 

2. No drinking vessels to be taken outside. 
3. There will be no entry or re-entry after 1 a.m. (the premises will 

undertake to publish on social media or other publications a last entry 
of midnight). 

4. Continuation of conditions on present licence Annex 2, conditions 9 & 
10 and Annex 3, conditions 15-18. 

5. No music to be audible at any affected residential façade. 
6. No live or recorded music in the second floor restaurant area. 

Page 20



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 29/10/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

7. The maximum number of persons at any one time in both smoking 
areas shall be limited to 10.  When on duty these people shall be 
controlled by the door supervisors. 

8. The licensee shall risk assess each event in relation to the need for 
door staff.  Where a need for door staff is identified a minimum of 2 
shall be employed. 

9. Where door supervisors are utilised at least one will remain on site until 
the last patron has left the premises. 

 
 
 

4.2 Application for a New Premises Licence for Corner Shop Express 
Limited, 216 Bethnal Green Road, London, E2 0AA  
 
At the request of the Chair, Alex Lisowski, Licensing Officer, introduced the 
report which detailed the application for a new Premises Licence at Corner 
Shop Express Limited, 216 Bethnal Green Road, London, E2 0AA. 
 
The Evidence 
 
Mr Lisowski presented further information that had been forwarded to 
Members under cover of a supplemental agenda and added that a previous 
Premises Licence that had operated at the venue had expired.  On 20 
September 2013, a Council Officer had observed alcohol being for sale at the 
premises and had advised the owner, Mrs Suraiya Bhuiyan, that she was not 
allowed to sell alcohol until she had been granted a licence.  However, on 25 
October Mr Lisowski had visited the shop and had been sold alcohol by the 
sales assistant.  Mrs Suraiya Bhuiyan had not been present then. 
 
The Chair requested comments from the applicant and Muhammed Bhuiyan, 
husband of the applicant, stated that the shop had been shut for six months 
for refurbishment works.  The premises had been an off licence since 1998 
and the licence had been in force when his wife took over the shop.  The 
previous owners had promised to transfer the licence but Mr Bhuiyan and his 
wife did not know how to proceed with the transfer and the licence had 
become void.  It would be very difficult to maintain the business without the 
licence.  In addition, problems experienced with his wife’s pregnancy meant 
that they could not pay much attention to the licence issues.  Mrs Bhuiyan’s 
sister had been put in charge of the shop because of Mrs Bhuiyan’s problems 
and she had made a mistake in selling alcohol.   
 
In response to Members’ questions, Mr Bhuiyan stated that: 

§ The shop had been shut due to his wife’s problems and they were not 
aware of how serious the matter was. 

§ The shop had been closed between 20 September and 25 October 
2013 and he apologised for the mistake made in selling alcohol. 

§ In future, any sales assistant would be made aware of requirements 
regarding alcohol sales. 

§ The application related from alcohol sales between 06:00 hours and 
02:00 hours the next day because he and his wife had not known how 

Page 21



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 29/10/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

to fill in the form properly.  They would accept any other hours 
proposed by the Sub-Committee. 

 
Members retired to consider their decision at 7.30 p.m. and reconvened at 
7.40 p.m. 
 
The Licensing Objectives 
 
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing 
Objectives, the Licensing Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 
 
Consideration 
 
Each application must be considered on its own merits and the Chair stated 
that after careful consideration of all verbal and written evidence, the Sub-
Committee had concerns regarding the licensing objectives of “crime and 
public disorder” and “public nuisance”.  The Chair pointed out that the 
circumstances notified by Officers could potentially involve a custodial 
sentence and Members were not convinced that the applicant could properly 
manage the shop and control the sale of alcohol. 
 
Decision 
 
Accordingly, by a majority decision the Sub-Committee – 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for a new Premises Licence at Corner Shop Express 
Limited, 216 Bethnal Green Road, London, E2 0AA be REFUSED. 
 
Mr Bhuiyan was advised of the applicant’s right of appeal. 
 
 
 

4.3 Application for a New Premises Licence for Moo Grill Bar, 60-62 Brick 
Lane, London, E1 6RF  
 
Item withdrawn. 
 
 

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT  
 
 

5.1 Licensing Act 2003: Temporary Event Notice - Robi's Off Licence, 106 
Brick Lane, London, E1 6RL  
 
At the request of the Chair, Alex Lisowski, Licensing Officer, introduced the 
report which set out details of the application for a Temporary Event Notice 
(TEN) from 6 to 10 November 2013, in respect of Robi’s Off Licence, 106 

Page 22



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 29/10/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

Brick Lane, London, E1 6RL.  The report had been circulated to the Sub-
Committee under cover of a supplemental agenda and Mr Lisowski added 
that this included details of written representation of the Metropolitan Police, 
who objected to the TEN. 
 
The Evidence 
 
At the request of the Chair, the applicant, Abdul Quddas, stated that the 
premises currently did not have a licence because he did not know how to 
transfer the previous licence and two TENs had been granted since he had 
taken over the property.  The shop was his only way of feeding his family.  He 
stated that there had been claims of people gathering together and drinking 
outside the store but CCTV at the premises showed no evidence of this.  He 
felt that the claim only related to people who were walking past his premises, 
as he did prevent people from socialising and drinking there.  When previous 
TENs had been granted, he had employed SIA badge holders who had 
moved people away from the store. 
 
PC Mark Perry, speaking in objection to the TEN, stated that the Police 
representation was on the licence objectives of “crime and disorder” and 
“public nuisance”.  The full terms of the objection stood as in the document 
circulated to Members prior to the meeting. 
 
Mr Perry added that people often “pre-loaded” with cheaper alcohol from off 
licences before going on to clubs and returned there after the clubs had 
closed, hanging around the premises and becoming more and more drunk.  
He had witnessed people standing around these premises and a colleague 
had witnessed the sale of alcohol there despite no Premises Licence being in 
force.  If the applicant already disregarded licensing laws, it would not be 
appropriate to grant him a TEN as it was felt that he would simply continue to 
do so, with alcohol being sold regardless of any hours or conditions that were 
applied. 
 
In response to Members’ Mr Quddas stated that he had adopted required 
conditions and employed SIA staff for previous TENs.  He had spoken to PC 
Perry and admitted he had been at fault, having continued to sell alcohol on 
the advice of his accountant.  He accepted responsibility for this.   
 
Mr Lisowski pointed out that the applicant had been made aware of the lack of 
any Premises Licence and advising him not to sell alcohol by a letter hand-
delivered on 30 September 2013. 
 
Members retired to consider their decision at 7.55 p.m. and reconvened at 
7.57 p.m. 
 
The Licensing Objectives 
 
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing 
Objectives, the Licensing Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 

Page 23



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 29/10/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

 
Consideration 
 
Each application must be considered on its own merits and the Chair stated 
that after careful consideration of all verbal and written evidence, the Sub-
Committee had strong concerns regarding the licensing objectives of “crime 
and public disorder” and “public nuisance” and felt that unauthorised alcohol 
sales would continue to occur. 
 
Decision 
 
Accordingly, by a unanimous decision the Sub-Committee – 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for a Temporary Event Notice at Robi’s Off Licence, 106 
Brick Lane, London, E1 6RL be REFUSED. 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.00 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Peter Golds 
Licensing Sub Committee 

 

Page 24



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 2.05 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 6 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Peter Golds (Chair) 
 
Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
 
  
 
Other Councillors Present: 
  
 
 
Officers Present: 
 
Kathy Driver – (Principal Licensing Officer) 
Luke Elford – (Lawyer – Enforcement and Litigation Team) 
Michelle Terry – (Legal Services) 
Simmi Yesmin – (Senior Committee Officer, Democratic Services) 

 
Applicants In Attendance: 
  
 

 
Objectors In Attendance: 
  
 

 
Members of the Public In Attendance: 
  
 

 
 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest.  

Page 25



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
3. RULES OF PROCEDURE  

 
The rules of procedure were noted.  
 
 

4. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

4.1 Application for New Premises Licence for Nisa Local, 9 Burdett Road, 
Mile End, London E3 4TU  
 
At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Principal Licensing Officer, 
introduced the report which detailed the application for a new premises 
licence for Nisa Local, 9 Burdett Road, Mile End, London E3 4TU. It was 
noted that a local Business Association had made an objection.  
 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Robert Jordan, Licensing Representative 
representing the Applicant, explained that the applicant would have the 
following procedures in place if the application was to be granted; 
 

• Maintain a incident book,  

• Maintain a refusal book,  

• No deliveries of goods before 8am or after 8pm,  

• Staff to undertake a regular litter patrol,  

• Operate a Challenge 25 Policy  

• Have till prompts to remind staff to check ID,  

• Finger ID scanning,  

• Appropriate signage to be displayed around the premises,  

• Regular staff training to be conducted,  

• Staff to hold personal licences  
 

Mr Jordon further added that no responsible authorities had objected to the 
application and conditions had been agreed with the police after successful 
consultation.   
 
Mr Jordan questioned the validity of the objection made against the 
application and asked which businesses were included in the “Burdett Road 
Business Association”, whether this was a registered organisation, and what 
date the meeting was in which they discussed this premises?  
 
He concluded that the Applicant was a responsible retailer, had previous 
experience, and all staff were trained to sell responsibly. It was noted that the 
premises was a newly furbished store with good fixtures and fittings, and 
would not increase the problems of anti-social behaviour in the area. 
 
Members then heard from Mr Didhar Hussain, representing the Burdett Road 
Business Association, he explained that this premises/application was the 
same as the previous application made a couple of months ago however the 
applicant was merely using a different address (change of door number). 

Page 26



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

Therefore, believed that the previous objections still applied, as there were the 
same concerns of underage drinking, street drinking and problems of anti-
social behaviour.  
 
In response to questions it was noted that there were CCTV cameras inside 
and outside the premises and that Mr Hussain had a similar business to that 
of Nisa but did not sell alcohol. There were then questions around the address 
of the premises and the address of the previous application. There was no 
clarification given at the meeting. 
 
After careful consideration, Members agreed to defer this item for a 
future meeting in order for officers to establish whether No.9 and No.11 
Burdett Road were the same premises and provide further information.  
 
 

4.2 Application to Review the Premises Licence for My Local, 12A Grove 
Road, London, E3 5AX  
 
At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Principal Licensing Officer, 
introduced the report which detailed the application for a review of the 
premises licence for My Local, 12a Grove Road, London E2 5AX. It was noted 
that the police had triggered the review following failed test purchases.  
 
At the request of the Chair, PC Mark Perry, Metropolitan Police explained that 
during the Lovebox weekend, the Tower Hamlets Police had carried out test 
purchase operations using Police cadets under the age of 18 to see if 
licensed premises they visit would sell them alcohol. It was noted that PC 
Cruickshank had attended the premises prior to the Lovebox weekend to 
remind the Premises Licence Holder and staff to be vigilant during the event 
with regards to checking ID and not to sell to those who were drunk.  
 
On two occasions during that weekend staff made underage sales and were 
issued penalty notices on both occasions. He explained that the premises had 
no previous history but despite having training and signs in the premises there 
were underage sales made. It was noted that the extra training that was 
referred to by the Premises Licence Holder in the supporting documents was 
undertaken after the review had been triggered and not after the failed test 
purchase.  
 
Members then heard from Ms Anna Matthias, Legal Representative for the 
Premise Licence Holder, Mr Tariq Sheikh. She explained that Mr Sheikh 
deeply regretted the two underage sales that were made. It was noted that the 
shop was opened in 2008 and was a small family run business. Mr Sheikh 
was always in the shop and was only away when he had to go to the cash 
and carry. She stated that Mr Sheikh had joined the Tower Hamlets Traders 
Scheme on his own accord and not out of desperation.  
 
She explained that staff undertook training on 30th July 2013, a refusal book is 
being kept and used to record all refusals and the CCTV system had been 
upgraded to cover areas both internal and external to the premises and 

Page 27



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

recordings would now be kept for 21 days, new signage had been placed and 
the store now operated a Challenge 25 policy.  
 
She explained that it was the only convenient store on Grove Road and was a 
small local store for local residents. She stated that there were no previous 
history/complaints linked to the premises and there hadn’t been any since the 
incident. Ms Matthais then referred to the law and powers that a Licensing 
Authority had on the determination of a review.    
 
In response to questions, the following was noted;  
 

• That staff believed that the cadets looked older then 18 years of age 

• That Mr Sheikh’s son showed no remorse when Police informed him 
that he had made an underage sale.   

• That Mr Sheikh’s son was very annoyed when he had realised that an 
underage sale had been made and reacted under pressure when 
approached by the Police.  

• That despite being informed of underage sales, two incidents of 
underage sales, had been made. 

• That staff would have regular training, would be asking for ID and 
would be recording refusals.  

 
Members retired to consider their decision at 3.05pm and reconvened at 
3.15pm. 
 
The Licensing Objectives 
 
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing 
Objectives, the Licensing Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 
 
Consideration 
 
Each application must be considered on its own merits and after careful 
consideration the Chair stated that the Sub Committee had decided to 
suspend the licence for two weeks and add conditions proposed by the 
Premise License Holder in order to address the concerns raised in relation to 
the licensing objectives of “the prevention of crime and disorder” and “the 
prevention of public nuisance”. Members believed that the conditions would 
address the concerns raised by the Police and promote the licensing 
objectives.  
 
The Sub Committee noted both comments and representations fromPC Perry 
and the Premises License Holder’s representative and the difficulty which 
arises from underage sales.  
 
Members did not think it was appropriate or proportionate to revoke the 
licence in its entirety as Members noted that there was no evidence to 
suggest that there was any public nuisance or crime and disorder linked to 
this premises previously. Therefore Members suspended the licence and 

Page 28



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

imposed the conditions proposed by the Premise Licence Holder as it would 
help prevent a repeat of another underage sale. 
 
Decision 
 
Accordingly, the Sub-Committee unanimously – 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for a Review of the Premises Licence for, My Local 12A 
Grove Road, London W3 5AXbe GRANTED in part, with conditions.   
 
Suspension 
 

• Two weeks suspension commencing from receipt of the decision letter.  
 

 
Conditions 
 

1. The premises shall implement a Challenge 25 policy in relation to the 
sale of age restricted products at all times. 

 
2. Signage advertising the minimum age for the purchase of age 

restricted products, the Challenge 25 policy and the use of CCTV shall 
be displayed prominently at the premises at all times. 

 
3. A refusal log shall be kept at the premises and all refusals of sales of 

alcohol, for whatever reasons, shall be recorded. 
 

4. Images obtained from the CCTV system at the premises shall be 
retained for 21 days.  

 
5. All staff serving customers shall be trained in their obligations 

surrounding underage sales and in how to avoid them. Such training 
will be refreshed regularly.  

 
 
 

4.3 Application to Vary the Premises Licence for Brick Lane Off Licence, 116 
Brick Lane, London E1 5JJ  
 
At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Principal Licensing Officer, 
introduced the report which detailed the application for a variation of the 
premises licence for Brick Lane Off Licence, 114 Brick Lane, London E1 5JJ. 
It was noted that the Police and local residents had objected to this 
application.  
 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Shahinul Shah, Applicant, explained that he 
wanted to provide a service to the customers who went to restaurants who did 
not sell alcohol by way of offering a service. He explained that the restaurant 
staff would call the off licence and a member of staff would then go over and 

Page 29



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

take the order, check ID, log the order and then deliver the drinks. Mr Shah 
stated that it wasn’t customers going to restaurants that caused anti-social 
behaviour in Brick Lane but were those people who went to the clubs, bars 
and late night venues.  
 
Members then heard from PC Perry, he referred to the representation 
contained in the agenda, and questioned how this business model would 
possibly work and raised concerns over how it would be controlled and 
monitored, how the bill would be charged, how the drinks would be served 
and generally believed it would be too difficult to manage.  
 
PC Perry suggested that if a licence was to be granted all staff should have 
personal licences, record who it had been sold to, what ID was shown, what 
has been sold and checked to see if the customer was inebriated or not.   
 
Members also heard from Mr John Shapiro, Resident and Chair of SPIRE, he 
stated that he supported PC Perry’s comments and raised concerns about the 
anti-social behaviour in the area and increase this would lead to. He also 
believed that it was off licences with late night licences that fuelled anti-social 
behaviour.  
 
In response to a question it was noted that the premises had a licence to sell 
alcohol from 9am however the premises opened at 12noon.   
 
Members retired to consider their decision at 3.40pm and reconvened at 
3.55pm. 
 
The Licensing Objectives 
 
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing 
Objectives, the Licensing Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 
 
Consideration 
 
Each application must be considered on its own merits and after careful 
consideration the Chair stated that the Sub Committee had decided to reject 
the application in order to prevent problems of increasing crime and disorder, 
public nuisance and public safety. 
 
Members listened carefully to the representations made by the Applicant and 
PC Perry. Members believed that the business plan proposed by the applicant 
was hopelessly unworkable and would increase the anti-social behaviour 
which already exists in the Brick Lane area. Members felt that remote selling 
of alcohol cannot be managed and would bring real concerns of crime and 
disorder to the area. In making the decision to reject the application Members 
considered the safety of staff taking and delivering orders, how financial 
transactions would take place, how staff would judge whether customers are 
intoxicated or suitable to consume alcohol, and how ID checks would be 
made. All these questions led to serious concerns and undermined the crime 

Page 30



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

& disorder objective, particularly when restaurants had been given suspension 
and revocations therefore Members rejected the application.   
 
Decision 
 
Accordingly, the Sub-Committee unanimously – 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for a Variation of the Premises Licence for, Brick Lane Off 
Licence, 114 Brick Lane, London E1 5JJ be Refused.  
 

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT  
 
There was no other business. 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 4.00 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Peter Golds 
Licensing Sub Committee 

 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 4.45 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 6 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Peter Golds (Chair) 
 
Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
 
  
 
 
Officers Present: 
 
Kathy Driver – (Principal Licensing Officer) 
Luke Elford – (Lawyer – Enforcement and Litigation Team) 
Simmi Yesmin – (Senior Committee Officer, Democratic Services) 

 
Applicants In Attendance: 
  
Mr Mohammed Alam                - (Subway) 

 
Objectors In Attendance: 
  
PC Mark Perry                         - (Metropolitan Police) 

 
 
 
Mr Luke Elford, Legal Services, asked Members of the Licensing Sub 
Committee and both parties present for the application in consideration if they 
were in agreement to proceed with the meeting earlier then the scheduled 
meeting time of 5pm. All parties agreed and therefore the meeting 
commenced at 4.45pm.  
  
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest.  
 

3. RULES OF PROCEDURE  

Page 33



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
The rules of procedure were noted.  
 
 

4. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

4.1 Objection to a Temporary Event Notice for 222 Brick Lane, London E1 
6SA  
 
At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Principal Licensing Officer, 
introduced the report which detailed the application for a temporary event 
notice for Subway, 222 Brick Lane, London E1 6SA. It was noted that the 
Metropolitan Police had objected to the application.  
 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Mohammed Alam, Applicant, explained that 
the application was for late night refreshments only. He stated that his 
premises would not attract new customers to the area and already sold cold 
sandwiches until 4.00 a.m.  The only change requested was for the licence to 
sell hot sandwiches and hot drinks, which he felt would actually reduce 
alcohol sales and anti-social behaviour.  He did not think that by selling hot 
food would increase the current anti-social behaviour in the area.  
 
Mr Alam stated that there was a need for Council to support local businesses. 
He mentioned that the Police had stated that he had been flaunting the 
Licensing Policy but he had been unaware of its requirements and had 
applied for a licence immediately once he had found out.  
 
Members then heard from PC Mark Perry, who explained that Brick Lane was 
number one in the borough for high levels of anti-social behaviour. He stated 
that if the application was granted then this would undermine the public 
nuisance objective and increase crime and disorder and anti-social behaviour 
in the area. He further explained that people usually want hot food after 
consuming alcohol in clubs, bars, and pubs which then leads to nuisance and 
disorder and another late night premises hot food would attract people to the 
area and they would remain hanging around there till early hours of the 
morning.  
 
PC Perry also pointed out that the applicant had traded outside opening 
hours, and was spoken to by the Licensing Section.  
 
In response to questions from Members the following was noted;  
 

• That the applicant currently didn’t have a licence but could sell cold 
food and drinks until 4am.  

• That the premise was opposite the 24 hour bagel shop in Brick Lane.  

• The dates applied for the Temporary Event Notice were for the 15th-
17th November. 

• That the large queues outside the 24 hour bagel shop would possibly 
be split between the two premises and possibly attract more inebriated 
and drunk people to the area.  

Page 34



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

 
Members retired to consider their decision at 5.15pm and reconvened at 
5.30pm. 
 
The Licensing Objectives 
 
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing 
Objectives, the Licensing Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 
 
Consideration 
 
Each application must be considered on its own merits and after careful 
consideration the Chair stated that the Sub Committee had decided to grant 
the temporary event notice. The Sub Committee noted both comments and 
representations from the Applicant and PC Perry and the difficulty which 
arises from the anti-social behaviour in the Brick Lane area.  
 
Members did not think it was appropriate or proportionate to reject the 
application entirely as Members noted that there was no evidence to suggest 
that there was any public nuisance or crime and disorder linked to this 
premises. However noted that the applicant had traded outside opening hours 
at a different premise he had owned.  
 
Members stated that on this occasion they would grant the application to give 
the applicant the opportunity to prove himself as a responsible seller.  
However Members stated that any results from trading would be used against 
the applicant for future applications if any problems were to occur. 
 
Decision 
 
Accordingly, the Sub-Committee unanimously – 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for a Temporary Event Notice for Subway, 222 Brick 
Lane, London E1 6SAbe GRANTED. 
 
The Provision of Late Night Refreshments  
 

• 15th – 17th November 2013 from 23:00 hours to 04:00 hours 
 
 

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT  
 
There was no other business. 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 5.35 p.m.  

Page 35



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 06/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
 

Chair, Councillor Peter Golds 
Licensing Sub Committee 

 

Page 36



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 12/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 12 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Ann Jackson (Chair) 
 
Councillor David Edgar 
Councillor Joshua Peck 
 
  
 
Other Councillors Present: 
 Nil 
 
 
Officers Present: 
 
Paul Greeno – (Senior Advocate, Legal Services, Chief 

Executive's) 
Michelle Terry – (Legal Services) 
Alex Lisowski – (Licensing Officer) 
Alan Ingram – (Democratic Services) 

 
Applicants In Attendance: 
 Mohammed Alam                      -      Owner, Subway, 222 Brick Lane 
 

 
Objectors In Attendance: 
 PC Alan Cruickshank                -     Metropolitan Police                
 

 
 

COUNCILLOR ANN JACKSON (CHAIR), IN THE CHAIR 
  

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. 
 

Page 37



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 12/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

3. RULES OF PROCEDURE  
 
The Rules of Procedure were noted. 
 

4. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee meeting held on 17 October 
2013 were agreed and approved as a correct record.  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 29 
October 2013 were deferred, following a query from Councillor Joshua Peck 
regarding the conditions that had been applied to the Premises Licence for 
Bethnal Green Working Men’s Club. 
  
 

5. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

5.1 Application for a New Premises Licence for Morrisons, 19 Leman Street, 
London E1 8EJ  
 
The Chair reported that this application had been withdrawn at the request of 
the applicant. 
 
 

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT  
 
 

6.1 Licensing Act 2003, Temporary Event Notice for Subway, 222 Brick 
Lane, London, E1 6SA  
 
The report relating to the request for Temporary Event Notices (TENs) at 
Subway, 222 Brick Lane, London, E1 6SA had been circulated to Members 
prior to the meeting under cover of a supplemental agenda, incorporating 
representations made by the Metropolitan Police. 
 
The Chair indicated that she would allow a period of five minutes both for the 
applicant and objector to make their cases. 
 
At the request of the Chair, Mohammed Alam, owner of Subway, 222 Brick 
Lane, London, E1 6SA, commented that a TEN had been granted for the 
premises by the Licensing Sub-Committee at a meeting during the previous 
week, for the period 15 to 17 November 2013.  Whilst he appreciated this did 
not constitute a precedent, he was only seeking TENs for three consecutive 
weekends of 22 to 24 November, 29 November to 1 December and 6 to 8 
December 2013.  He agreed that anti-social behaviour (ASB) in the Borough 
needed to be tackled but the Council must avoid stifling small businesses and 
in any event the prime cause of ASB was due to alcohol sales.  Preventing 
the sale of hot food and drinks would not help in that connection. 
 

Page 38



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 12/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

Mr Alam added that his premises would not attract new customers to the area 
and already sold cold sandwiches until 4.00 a.m.  The only change requested 
was for permission to sell hot sandwiches and hot drinks, which he felt would 
actually reduce alcohol sales and consequent ASB.  He was a responsible 
business-owner and would work with the Police to reduce ASB, at the same 
time investing in the Borough.  The Police had stated that he had been 
flaunting the Licensing policy but he had been unaware of its requirements 
and had applied for a licence immediately he knew of these.  He considered 
that the applications would have no negative impact on the Brick Lane area. 
 
PC Alan Cruickshank, Metropolitan Police Licensing Officer, spoke in support 
of the representations that had been circulated objecting to the TENs 
application.  He agreed that alcohol was the main fuel of ASB but hot food 
attracted people to the area and they would remain hanging around there.  PC 
Cruickshank commented that a Police Officer had witnessed hot food being 
sold at the premises on 27 October 2013 at 00:10 hours, when there was no 
Late Night Refreshment Licence in place.  Mr Alam had explained to the 
Officer that he had believed the planning permission for the premises of “A1 
no restriction” meant that he could open whenever he wanted.  However, this 
contradicted advice already given to Mr Alam by a Council Officer on 2 May 
2013 in connection with the Subway premises at 6 – 25 Mile End Road, 
London. 
 
PC Cruickshank stated that the Borough had adopted a Saturation Impact 
Policy for the Brick Lane area and the Police concerns reflected this.  Hours of 
business open to 4.00 a.m. would have a negative impact on the licensing 
objective of public disorder and nuisance.  He indicated that Brick Lane 
already suffered from levels of ASB second only to Westminster between 
22:00 hours on Friday and 02:00 hours on Monday.  The Police would object 
to any other such applications, despite the fact that similar permissions 
already existed, and he requested that the application for Subway be refused. 
 
At the request of the Chair, Alex Lisowski, Licensing Officer, confirmed that a 
TEN for the premises had been granted by the Licensing Sub-Committee on 6 
November 2013 and the Police had also objected to that application.  With the 
permission of all present, he circulated information giving details of late night 
licences already in effect for premises in the vicinity of Subway but made the 
point that the Cumulative Impact Policy did not relate to TENs. 
 
In response to questions from Members, the following was noted: 

§ One test purchase had been made by the Police at Subway, 222 Brick 
Lane and one complaint by the public had been received with regard to 
Subway at Mile End Road. 

§ Hot food seemed to attract people who had already drunk a lot of 
alcohol, although there had been no complaints yet about 222 Brick 
Lane.  Drunk and disorderly incidents still occurred despite sales of fish 
and chips, etc. 

§ The Subway owner would contact the Council for details of all 
appropriate regulations and would educate himself in this connection, 
as the Subway organisation did not provide such information. 

 

Page 39



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 12/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

Members retired to consider their decision at 7.00 p.m. and reconvened at 
7.28 p.m. 
 
The Licensing Objectives 
 
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing 
Objectives, the Licensing Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 
 
Consideration 
 
Each application must be considered on its own merits and after careful 
consideration the Chair stated that the Sub Committee had carefully listened 
to both the applicant and the objector. Members had paid particular attention 
to concerns raised about anti-social behaviour whilst taking account of the fact 
that TENs were outside the terms of the Cumulative Impact Policy.  
 
Although the decision had been finely balanced, Members felt that granting 
the TENs would add to anti-social behaviour and would have an adverse 
effect on the Licensing Objectives of “prevention of crime and disorder” and 
“prevention of public nuisance”.  They had, therefore, decided to accept the 
objection made by the Police. 
 
Decision 
 
Accordingly, the Sub-Committee unanimously – 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for Temporary Events Notices for Subway, 222 Brick 
Lane, London, E1 6SA, be REFUSED.    
 
 
    

 
 

The meeting ended at 7.30 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Ann Jackson 
Licensing Sub Committee 

 

Page 40



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 20/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 6.00 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 20 NOVEMBER 2013 
 

THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor David Snowdon (Chair) 
 
Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Councillor Peter Golds 
 
  
 
 
Officers Present: 
 
Kathy Driver – (Principal Licensing Officer) 
Michael McCabe – (Legal Services) 
Simmi Yesmin – (Senior Committee Officer, Democratic Services) 

 
Applicants In Attendance: 
  
Lee Dicker                              - (Vibe Bar) 
Jane Earl                                - (Rich Mix) 
Neil Chisholm                         - (Rich Mix) 

 
Objectors In Attendance: 
  
PC Alan Cruickshank             - (Metropolitan Police) 

 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest.  
 

3. RULES OF PROCEDURE  
 
The rules of procedure were noted.  
 
 
 

Page 41



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 20/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

4. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
 

4.1 Application for a Temporary Event Notices for The Vibe Bar, 91-95 Brick 
Lane, London, E1 6WL  
 
At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Principal Licensing Officer, 
introduced the report which detailed the application for a Temporary Event 
Notice for Vibe Bar 91-95 Brick Lane, London E1 6WL. It was noted that an 
objection had been received from the Police.  
 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Lee Dicker, Director of Vibe Bar, briefly 
explained that the special cumulative impact policy did not relate to 
Temporary Event Notices and therefore believed that it was incorrect to apply 
it to this application. He referred to his statement and mentioned that he had 
been a part of Vibe Bar since it had opened, which was almost 18 years ago. 
He highlighted that the directors were very serious about the premises being a 
neighbourhood venue and have helped create significant improvement, 
regeneration and investment in the area.  
 
He also added that with the current operating schedule, no drinks were 
allowed to be taken outside the premises after 10pm, no glasses are to be 
used, no re-entry after a specific time etc together with all other conditions on 
the licence, Mr Dicker did not feel that it would be attracting a crowd that 
would increase the crime and disorder and anti-social behaviour in the area.   
 
Members then heard from PC Alan Cruickshank, Metropolitan Police, he 
stated that adding these additional hours to the Vibe Bar would attract more 
people to the area and by allowing these temporary event notices it would 
only exasperate the problems of alcohol related crime and disorder. He further 
explained that the hours fall within the peak hours for crime and disorder and 
public nuisance.  
 
In response to questions, PC Cruickshank further explained examples of ASB 
in the area and how these would increase. It was also noted that recently 
there had no complaints or reported crime and disorder or anti-social 
behaviour relating specifically to the premises.  
 
Members retired to consider their decision at 6.20pm and reconvened at 
6.21pm. 

 
The Licensing Objectives 
 
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing 
Objectives, the Licensing Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 
 
Consideration 
 

Page 42



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 20/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

Each application must be considered on its own merits and after careful 
consideration the Chair stated that the Sub Committee had carefully listened 
to both Mr Dicker and PC Cruickshank. Members did not think it was 
appropriate or proportionate to refuse the application as there was no 
evidence to suggest that there was any specific public nuisance or crime and 
disorder linked to this premises which would lead to an increase in anti-social 
behaviour in the area. Therefore Members granted the application for a 
Temporary Event Notice.  
 
Decision 
 
Accordingly, the Sub-Committee unanimously – 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for a Temporary Event Notice for The Vibe Bar, 91-95 
Brick Lane, London E1 6WL be GRANTED.  
 
Sale of Alcohol & Regulated Entertainment  
    

• Saturday 23rd November 2013 from 01:00 hours to 04:00 hours  

• Saturday 30th November 2013 from 01:00 hours to 03:00 hours 
 
 
 

4.2 Application for a Temporary Events Notice for Rich Mix  35-47 Bethnal 
Green Road, London, E1 6LA  
 
At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Principal Licensing Officer, 
introduced the report which detailed the application for a Temporary Event 
Notice for Rich Mix, 35-47 Bethnal Green Road, London E1 6LA. It was noted 
that an objection had been received from the Police.  
 
At the request of the Chair, Ms Jane Earl, Chief Executive for Rich Mix 
explained that they had, had only three TENs to date, when they have the 
ability to apply for up to 12 such extensions in a calendar year. She referred to 
her statement submitted to Members and explained that it was an Arts 
Council sponsored folk and world and music event, that they had worked well 
with the Police and local residents in the past, and were committed to being a 
good neighbour and as a result haven’t had any complaints/problems. Ms Earl 
concluded that there had been no significant anti-social behaviour caused by 
those visiting Rich Mix and believed that this event would not increase the 
crime and disorder or public nuisance in the area.  
 
Members then heard from PC Cruickshank who stated that he had said in the 
past that there was no specific concern for the premises. However, 
highlighted that the hours applied for were during peak hours and an extra 
400+ people in the Brick Lane area would have a significant effect on the 
number of people staying in the area whether it is to attend the late night 
eating establishments or to await transport home which at that time in the 
morning would greatly increase the chances of people shouting, dropping litter 

Page 43



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 20/11/2013 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

and hanging around to the early hours of the morning causing an increase in 
crime and disorder and public nuisance.  
 
In response to a question it was noted that the event had successfully taken 
place twice before in the past two years and there had no reported problems.  
 
Members retired to consider their decision at 6.40pm and reconvened at 
6.41pm. 

 
The Licensing Objectives 
 
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing 
Objectives, the Licensing Guidance and the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 
 
Consideration 
 
Each application must be considered on its own merits and after careful 
consideration the Chair stated that the Sub Committee had carefully listened 
to both Ms Earl and PC Cruickshank. Members did not think it was 
appropriate or proportionate to refuse the application as there was no 
evidence to suggest that there was any specific public nuisance or crime and 
disorder linked to this premises which would lead to an increase in anti-social 
behaviour in the area. Therefore Members granted the application for a 
Temporary Event Notice.  
 
Decision 
 
Accordingly, the Sub-Committee unanimously – 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the application for a Temporary Event Notice for Rich Mix, 35-47 Bethnal 
Green, London E1 6LA be GRANTED.  

 

Sale of Alcohol, Regulated Entertainment & Late Night Refreshments  
    

• Sunday 24th November 2013 from 00:01 hours to 04:00 hours  
 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 6.50 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor David Snowdon 
Licensing Sub Committee 

 

Page 44



 

Committee: 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Date:  
 

12 December 2013 

Classification: 

 

UNRESTRICTED 

Report No. 
 

LSC 42/134 

Agenda Item 
No. 

 

Report of:  David Tolley 
Head of Consumer and Business Regulations 
Service 

 
Originating Officer:  

Mohshin Ali 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Title:  Licensing Act 2003  
Application to Review the Premises Licence for 
Joiners Arms, 116 – 118 Hackney Road, London E2 
7QL 

 
Ward affected:  

Weavers 

 

 
 
1.0 Summary 

 
Name and    Joiners Arms 

 
Address of premises:  116 - 118 Hackney Road 

London  
E2 7QL 
 

Licence under review: Licensing Act 2003 – Premises Licence 

• The sale by retail of alcohol 

• Provision of Regulated Entertainment  

• provision of late night refreshment 
 

Representations:  Met Police 

• Residents (Supporting the premises) 
  
 
 
    

2.0 Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application for review and 

then adjudicates accordingly. 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

   
   
Brief description of "background paper" Tick if copy supplied for 

register 
 

If not supplied, name and telephone 
number of holder 

• Guidance Issued under Section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003  

• Tower Hamlets Licensing Policy 

• File  

  
Mohshin Ali 
020 7364 5498 

 

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 45



3.0 Review Application 
 
3.1 This is an application for a review of the premises licence for Joiners 

Arms, 116 – 118 Hackney Road, London E2 7QL. The review was 
triggered by Trading Standards, the Local Weights and Measures 
Authority.  

 

3.2 A copy of the review application is attached in Appendix 1.  
 

3.3 In relation to the application and the representations, the personal details 
such as emails, phone numbers and signatures have been redacted for 
the purposes of identity theft protection. The Licensing Officer has the 
original documents. 

 

4.0 The Premises 
 
4.1 The original premises licence was issued on 17th October 2005. A copy 

of the current licence is contained in Appendix 2. 
 

4.2 Maps showing the premises and the surrounding areas are included in 
Appendix 3. 

 
5.0 Representations 
 
5.1 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because a review 

has been triggered by the Metropolitan Police.  
 

5.2 Residents have made representations against the review and in support 
of the premises. 
a) Please see the list of residents who are opposing the review and 

are in support of the premises (Appendix 4). Please see 
Appendices 5 to 21 for the actual individual representations. 
 

b) Please see Appendix 27 for a representation by way of a petition 
consisting of 122 pages. The signatures are from people both 
within Tower Hamlets and various parts of London.  

 
c) Another online petition was received with 2566 supporters. 

However, this petition does not contain signatures and the full 
addresses are not given. Therefore this has been included as 
supporting documents from the licence holder and not as a 
representation (Please see Appendix 28). 

 
5.3 We have received 8 further representations from residents in support of 

the premises which did relate to the licensing objectives. In addition, 
there was only 1 representation which was against the premises. 
However, at the time of writing this report, these representations were 
deemed invalid as they did not reply to provide their addresses.  
 

Page 46



5.4 A further 21 people made invalid representations as they did not relate to 
the licensing objectives. These people were written to and advised 
accordingly. 
 

5.5 Only representations that relate to the following licensing objectives are 
relevant: 

• the prevention of crime and disorder 

• public safety 

• the prevention of public nuisance 

• the protection of children from harm  
 
5.6 In the view of the responsible authority and the interested parties it is 

necessary to achieve the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime 
and disorder. 

 
 

6.0 Review Explained 
 

6.1 The Licensing Act 2003 was described by the Government at the time as 
“light touch” but as Baroness Blackstone stated in the Lords at the time 
of the second reading (26 Nov 2002) “Local residents and businesses  
as well as expert bodies, will have the power to request that the licensing 
authority review existing licences where problems arise. Such a review 
could result in the modification of the licence, its suspension, or 
ultimately, revocation.” 

 

6.2 The Home Office has issued guidance under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 in relation to reviews and that is contained in 
Appendix 22. It is available on the Government’s website, 
www.homeoffice.gov.uk. It was last revised in June 2013. 
 

6.3 Members are particularly asked to note the comments in relation Crime 
and Disorder. In particular the home office advice is that “The role of the 
licensing authority when determining such a review is not therefore to 
establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure that the 
crime prevention objective is promoted.” 
 

6.4 In relation to its advice on representations the Home Office has also 
advised that “there is no requirement for an interested party or 
responsible authority to produce a recorded history of problems at a 
premises to support their representations.” It has also issued revised 
guidance about Crime and Disorder, and the pool of conditions which 
might be considered in relation to any identified problems. see 
Appendix 23. 
 

6.5 Members should also note the Council’s Licensing Policy in relation to 
Crime and Disorder, the relevant parts of which are contained in 
Appendix 24. The Pool Conditions in the Policy are the same as the 
Government’s. 

 

Page 47



6.6 The home office has also issued guidance about the prevention of public 
nuisance and advice which might be considered in relation to any 
identified problems is contained in Appendix 25. 
 

6.7 The Council’s Licensing Policy in relation to Public Nuisance is 
contained in Appendix 26. 

 

6.8 The Home Office has advised that in relation to reviews “It is important to 
recognise that the promotion of the licensing objectives relies heavily on 
a partnership between licence holders, authorised persons, responsible 
authorities and any other persons in pursuit of common aims. Where 
authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about 
problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give 
licence holders early warning of their concerns and the need for 
improvement, and where possible they should advise the licence or 
certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those 
concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is 
expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a 
local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged 
and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-operation (11.11)” 

 
6.9 An interested party or a responsible authority can trigger a review at any 

time, but the grounds must be relevant to the licensing objectives. The 
form of the application, and the advertisement of the review are the 
subject of regulations (The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and 
Club Premises Certificate) Regulations 2005). In addition, the licensing 
authority has to satisfy itself of certain matters in relation to the Licensing 
Act 2003.  

 

6.10 The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the Licensing Authority satisfies 
itself that it should reject the grounds for a review because: 

• The ground is not relevant to one or more of the licensing 
objectives 

• In the case of an application by a local resident that the 
application is frivolous, vexatious or repetitious.  

 

7.0 Review Advertisement  
 

7.1 The review was advertised by a blue poster, next to the premises, by the 
Licensing Section. This was periodically monitored by the Section to 
ensure it was on continuous display, and replaced as necessary. It was 
also advertised at Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London E14 2BG. 

 

7.2 The party that triggers the review must notify the licence holder and 
responsible authorities. The review documents were sent to the licence 
holders. 

 

 

 

Page 48



7.3 The procedure for a review can be summarised as follows: 

• A review is triggered by a responsible authority or interested party 

• Consultation is conducted for 28 full days 

• Other responsible authorities or interested parties may join in the 
review 

• Members conduct a hearing 

• Members make a determination 

• All the parties to the review have the right of appeal to the 
magistrates court (i.e. the licence holder, the person who triggered 
the review and those who have made a representation).  

 

8.0 Licensing Officer Comments 
 
8.1 Members must consider all the evidence and then decide from the 

following alternatives: 

• Take no further action as they do not consider it proportionate to do 
so 

• Impose conditions (including altering existing permissions) that 
relate to problems which they consider have been identified and 
which are necessary and proportionate to ensure that the licensing 
objectives are met 

• Suspend the licence for a period 

• Revoke the licence completely 
 

8.2 The licence should only be suspended or revoked if Members believe 
that alterations to the existing licence, including imposing new conditions 
does not have a reasonable prospect of ensuring that the licensing 
objectives are met.   

 
8.3 Members should bear in mind that conditions may not be imposed for 

any purpose other than to meet the licensing objectives. 
 
8.4 In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden 

of proof that is “the balance of probability.” 
 
8.5 In all cases Members should consider whether or not primary legislation 

is the appropriate method of regulation and should only consider licence 
conditions when the circumstances in their view are not already 
adequately covered elsewhere.  

 
9.0 Legal Comments 
 
9.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing. 
 
10.0 Finance Comments 
 
10.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 
 

Page 49



 
11.0 Appendices 
 
 
Appendix 1 Copy of the review application 
 
 
Appendix 2 Copy of the current licence 
 
 
Appendix 3 Maps showing the premises and the surrounding 

areas 
 
Appendix 4 List of residents who are opposing the review 
 
 
Appendix 5 - 21 Residents actual individual representations 
 
 
Appendix 22 Guidance issued under Section 182 by the Home 

Office for reviews  
 

Appendix 23  Guidance Issued by the Home Office under 
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 concerning 
Crime and Disorder 

 
Appendix 24 London Borough of Tower Hamlets Licensing 

Policy in relation to the prevention of Crime and 
Disorder 

 
Appendix 25 Guidance Issued by the Home Office under 

Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 concerning 
Public Nuisance 

 
Appendix 26 London Borough of Tower Hamlets Policy in 

relation to the prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
Appendix 27  Representation by way of a petition 
 
 
Appendix 28 Supporting documents (petition) from the licence 

holder 
 
Appendix 29  Further supporting documents submitted on behalf 

of the Premise Licence Holder  

Page 50



 Appendix 1

Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Appendix 2
             

        

         

Page 69



See the attached licence for the licence conditions

Signed by John McCrohan
Trading Standards and Licensing Manager

Date: 17th October 2005

- Amended on 14th July 2010 following a minor variation
- Amended on 1st August 2012 following a minor variation

(Joiners Arms)

116 – 118 Hackney Road
London

E2 7QL

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence

Retail sale of alcohol
Provision of Late Night Refreshment

Provision of Regulated Entertainment

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\HackneyRoad116-118.doc Page 1 of 9Page 70



(Part A - Format of premises licence

Premises licence number 16317

Part 1 - Premises details  

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 

(Joiners Arms)

116 – 118 Hackney Road

Post town 

London

Post code 

E2 7QL

Telephone number

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

The sale by retail of alcohol

The provision of regulated entertainment 
The provision of late night refreshment

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\HackneyRoad116-118.doc Page 2 of 9 Page 71



The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Sale by retail of alcohol, Live music, recorded music, facilities for making music 

and dancing, late night refreshment:

Monday to Wednesday from noon to 02 00 hrs the following day
Thursdays from noon to 03 00 hrs the following day

Fridays and Saturdays from noon to 04 00 hrs the following day
Sundays from noon to 02 00 hrs the following day

Special Occasions

Christmas Eve, Boxing Day, Patrons Saints Days, Burns Night, New Years Eve 

from 10 00 hrs to 0400 hrs the following day

The opening hours of the premises

Monday to Wednesday from noon to 02 30 hrs the following day
Thursdays from noon to 03 30 hrs the following day

Fridays and Saturdays from noon to 04 30 hrs the following day
Sundays from noon to 02 30 hrs the following day

Special Occasions

Christmas Eve, Boxing Day, Patrons Saints Days, Burns Night, New Years Eve 

from 10 00 hrs to 0430 hrs the following day

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or 

off supplies

On and off sales

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\HackneyRoad116-118.doc Page 3 of 9Page 72



Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of 

holder of premises licence 

David Pollard 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable)

Not applicable

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

David Pollard

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 

designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\HackneyRoad116-118.doc Page 4 of 9 Page 73



Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 
Effective from 6th April 2010

1.

(1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure 

that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or 
more of the following activities, or substantially similar activities, 

carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises in a manner which carries 
a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and disorder, 

prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children–

(a)games or other activities which require or encourage, or are 

designed to require or encourage, individuals to;

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to 
drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the 

cessation of the period in which the responsible person is 
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii)drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit 
or otherwise); 

(b)provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or 

for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined 
by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or 

discount available to an individual in respect of alcohol for 
consumption at a table meal, as defined in section 159 of the 
Act); 

(c)provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a 
prize to encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of 

alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less;

(d)provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing 
on the premises of a sporting event, where that provision is 

dependent on;

(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, 

or

(ii)the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

(e)selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional 

posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can 
reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise 

anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in 
any favourable manner.

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\HackneyRoad116-118.doc Page 5 of 9Page 74



2. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly 
by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other 

person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

3. The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on 

request to customers where it is reasonably available.

Effective from 10th October 2010:

4.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder 
shall ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises 

in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible 
person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be 

specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a

holographic mark.

5. The responsible person shall ensure that;

(a)where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or 
supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or 

supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers 
in the following measures–

(i)     beer or cider: ½ pint;

(ii)    gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b)customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-

a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of 
the premises licence, or

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or 
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence 

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\HackneyRoad116-118.doc Page 6 of 9Page 75



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

1. No Adult Entertainment

2. Warning Sign in relation to drugs

3. Signs at all exits asking customers to leave quietly

4. No children in the Bar area at any time

5. The rear outside area of the premises is not to be used for any licensable 

activity

6. CCTV camera to be placed in rear yard area linked to the main CCTV 
system. 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

N/A

Annex 4 - Plans 

The plans are those submitted to the licensing authority on the following date:

18th May 2012 – (Ground Floor only including outside rear yard area as    
smoking area only)

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\HackneyRoad116-118.doc Page 7 of 9Page 76



Part B - Premises licence summary

Premises licence number 16317

Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or 
description 

(Joiners Arms)

116 – 118 Hackney Road

Post town 

London

Post code 

E2 7QL

Telephone number 

Where the licence is time limited 
the dates Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by 
the licence 

The sale by retail of alcohol
The provision of regulated entertainment 
The provision of late night refreshment

Licensing Act 2003

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\HackneyRoad116-118.doc Page 8 of 9 Page 77



The times the 
licence authorises 

the carrying out of 
licensable 
activities

Sale by retail of alcohol, Live music, recorded music, 
facilities for making music and dancing, late night 

refreshment:

Monday to Wednesday from noon to 02 00 hrs 
Thursdays from noon to 03 00 hrs Fridays and 

Saturdays from noon to 04 00 
Sundays from noon to 02 00 hrs 

Special Occasions

Christmas Eve, Boxing Day, Patrons Saints Days, 

Burns Night, New Years Eve from 10 00 hrs to 0400 hrs 

The opening 
hours of the 

premises

Monday to Wednesday from noon to 02 30 hrs 
Thursdays from noon to 03 30 hrs 

Fridays and Saturdays from noon to 04 30 hrs
Sundays from noon to 02 30 hrs 

Special Occasions

Christmas Eve, Boxing Day, Patrons Saints Days, 

Burns Night, New Years Eve from 10 00 hrs to 0430 hrs  

Name, (registered) address of holder 

of premises licence

David Pollard 

Where the licence authorises supplies 
of alcohol whether these are on and / 
or off supplies

On and off sales

Registered number of holder, for 

example company number, charity 
number (where applicable)

Not applicable

Name of designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence 

authorises for the supply of alcohol

David Pollard

State whether access to the premises 

by children is restricted or prohibited

Yes

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\HackneyRoad116-118.doc Page 9 of 9 Page 78



      Appendix 3

Page 79



116 - 118 Hackney Road

Page 80



116 - 118 Hackney Road

Page 81



      Appendix 4

Page 82



N
a
m

e
A

d
d

re
s
s
1

A
d

d
re

s
s
2

A
d

d
re

s
s
3

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

O
la

 A
w

o
s
ik

a
L
o
n
d
o
n

5

E
le

a
n
o
r 

F
a
w

c
e
tt

L
o
n
d
o
n

6

R
ic

h
 H

a
rr

is
L
o
n
d
o
n

7

G
a
re

th
 H

a
y
e
s

L
o
n
d
o
n

8

J
o
e
 H

e
a
rt

y
L
o
n
d
o
n

9

N
ic

h
o
la

s
 L

b
L
o
n
d
o
n

1
0

L
a
u
ra

 K
e
rr

ig
a
n

L
o
n
d
o
n

1
1

R
y
a
n
 O

'H
a
re

L
o
n
d
o
n

1
2

C
h
a
rl
ie

 P
o
rt

e
r

L
o
n
d
o
n

1
3

J
a
k
e
 S

a
n
d
e
rs

w
o
o
d

L
o
n
d
o
n

1
4

R
a
in

b
o
w

 H
a
m

le
ts

 (
J
G

ilb
e
rt

)
L
o
n
d
o
n

1
5

S
.J

 W
a
ts

o
n

L
o
n
d
o
n

1
6

T
h
o
m

a
s
 H

o
w

a
rd

L
o
n
d
o
n

1
7

C
h
e
m

a
 D

ia
z

L
o
n
d
o
n

1
8

M
a
ri
o
 P

u
lin

i
L
o
n
d
o
n

1
9

J
u
lia

n
 S

m
it
h

L
o
n
d
o
n

2
0

T
im

 L
lo

y
d

L
o
n
d
o
n

2
1

Page 83



Appendix 5

Page 84



�

���������	�


��� ��������	
��

���� ���������������������

�� �	����	��

�������  !��"�	���������

Dear Licensing Board 

I am writing in relation to the licensing review of The Joiners Arms, 116-118 Hackney Road, London E2 7QL 

I have lived in Shoreditch for many years and in that time have regularly frequented The Joiners. I was distressed to hear that the 
licensing hours might be reduced, resulting in the closing time being 12.30 every evening. This could result in possible closure of 
this East London institution. 

It is one of the few gay establishments in the area, providing a sanctuary and family environment to the gay community in the area. 
It is safe, friendly and welcoming. A stark contrast to the rowdy surrounding pubs and clubs that often target the gay community, 
spouting homophobic abuse at closing time. I believe that the possible new closing time would result in further harassment and 
safety issues of The Joiners customers, the complete opposite to your objectives. 

I ask you to reconsider the proposal, based not only on my views but those of the wider patrons of The Joiners 

Kind regards, 
Ola  

                                   

��������	
���

Page 85



Appendix 6

Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Appendix 7

Page 89



�

���������	�


��� ��������	����
�

���� ���������������������

�� �����
���

������� �����
���� �����!�"���#�����
�$��
%����!����	��&��'�����%��������(��)*�

Rich Harris

Dear Licensing Board

I am writing in relation to the licensing review of The Joiners Arms, 116-118 Hackney Road, London E2 7QL.

I have lived in Shoreditch for over 6 years and I have been going to The Joiners even before I moved to the area. I am very 

disturbed to hear that the licensed hours might be reduced, resulting in the closing time being 12:30 every evening.  This concerns 

me for a number of reasons: The Joiners is the only established gay pub in the area providing a safe haven for like minded 

individuals to meet friends, feel part of the LBGT community and take part in many of the organised activities including the 

support The Joiners provided for HIV testing; it is an institution, part of the vibrant, creative area of Shoreditch that we all 

love.  It a place where we can feel safe. I believe it also reduces the amount of crime and disorder as we are not then having to 

queue at other non gay bars in Shoreditch whereby some of my friends have been subjected to homophobic abuse, leading to a 

visible public nuisance and also fear for my friends and I when going out in future.  

I am aware of a number of steps that The Joiners has taken to react to concerns raised by the police and the licensing board 

including the smoking area at the back of the building, CCTV throughout the premises and vast improvements regarding reducing 

crowds outside the front of the pub, which has lead to reduced noise for the surrounding neighbours.  I myself feel very safe in 

The Joiners and have never known of any trouble or crime committed on the premises.  I, along with three of my close friends, 

have been the victim of homophobic abuse when we were attacked in Tower Hamlets. The thought of this safe haven having its 

licensing hours reduced, potentially leading to its impending closure, is of grave concern to my friends and I.  I truly believe that 

such action would not achieve the objectives of the licensing board and police of prevention of crime, disorder and public 

nuisance and improving public safety; to the contrary, I believe it would make matters worse, leading to fear in the LGBT 

community and increased issues relating to safety, disorder and harassment, which I have experienced first hand.  

I please ask you to reconsider the proposal under this review, based not only on my views, but those of the wider patrons of The 

Joiners.  If you require any further information in relation to the points raised in my email, or if you would like to talk to me 

regarding any other associated points in relation to your review, please contact me on the above number, or via. email. 

Yours faithfully

Rich Harris

Page 90



Appendix 8

Page 91



Page 92



Appendix 9

Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Appendix 10

Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Appendix 11

Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Appendix 12

Page 102



�

���������	�


��� ���������	
��

���� ��������
	�����������

�� ���
� ���

������� !���
	 


�		������
	�� "����#�$%


	��������� &��%�
�
'

Hi  

Please could you let me know when the joiners arms licence will next be debated as I would like to 
give verbal evidence regarding this. 

Thanks 

Ryan 

Page 103



�

���������	�


��� ���������	
�

���� ��������
	�����������

�� ���
� ���

�� !�����"
 ���

������� #$%��&���
	 �'	� 

Hi 

Further to my email conversation with Simmi, who has been very helpful, I wish to make a representation in 

order to speak at the licensing meeting. My evidence will involve: 

How the joiners arms prevents serious crime and disorder, and by this I mean homophobic hate attacks, by 

providing a safe late night drinking venue for any member of the community, and is particularly important 

for members who would otherwise have no alternative local late night venues to attend due to their sexual 

orientation, or appearance. If it closed earlier these people, many of which are quite vulnerable, would be 

scattered to bars and clubs throughout the area where tolerance and acceptance of people is much lower. 

This would definitely result in a general increase in the level of crime and disorder throughout the area as a 

whole. 

Keeping everyone of a like-minded nature in one venue all night therefore really improves public safety as 

well, as it is much easier for the police to respond to any homophobic attacks and be able to respond to 

incidents with correctly trained officers. It also provides would-be attackers with a disincentive as the 

majority of homophobic people would not be interested in stepping foot in a gay bar even if they were intent 

on attacking someone due to their sexuality, so the likelihood of them going in and attacking someone is 

significantly reduced by the sheer volume of gay people congregating in one place, and its a fact especially 

relevant when compared to the likelihood of them attacking someone in the street or at a non-gay bar which 

of course the chances of which will be substantially increased if the licensing hours of the joiners change. 

I hope this is a useful outline of my intended defence and as a local resident hopefully I will have the chance 

to put this view across in more detail, in person. 

Please let me know if this is going to be possible. If not I shall submit more detailed written evidence. 

Many Thanks 

Ryan O'Hare  

Page 104



Appendix 13

Page 105



Page 106



Appendix 14

Page 107



�

���������	�


��� ����������	
����� �

���� ���������	�������� ��

�� !����
���

������� �����	
�"	�
�!�������#�$���

Dear Licensing Officer, 

It has recently come to my attention that The Metropolitan Police have asked you to review the licence of 

The Joiners Arms; an effect that would ultimately have to lead to the establishment's closure. I cannot 

equivocate strongly enough the negative impact that this would have both on my own life but also the local 

gay community at large. 

The gay scene in London is split into three notable sections, that of Soho with your more traditional dance-

lite clubs and Vauxhall, more hard house, very late night. These scenes invite totally different characters. In 

my own capacity as a gay man I feel totally at odds with both. It is the third section, the East London scene 

and specifically Joiners Arms which in many respects has made me into the person I am today. It goes 

beyond the confines of 'gay subculture' and has built a close knit and unique community around it. It is a 

place where individuality and creativity are celebrated. Where it's the very differences between people that 

bring them together  I have made many of my friends here from all different backgrounds, English to 

Spanish to Italian to transgendered to Lesbian and beyond. I cannot think where else I would be able to 

make friends and experiences with such vibrancy. I have also formed several of my most personal and 

intense relationships here too.  It'd be with such great sadness to lose such a unique culture from the London 

gay map, there is genuinely no friendlier pub I have come across of any kind. 

I understand there have been complaints brought forward regarding crime but from my own personal 

experience as regular patron for the past 5 years have no negative experiences to speak of. In any very busy 

and congested pub where people are worse for wear you are going to have occasional acts of theft or the 

like. It's the reality of the world much like any night time establishment. I think if you were to compare it to 

the 'straight' clubs that you find a little further down Hackney Road; big fights breaking out at every turn, 

glass flying and people vomiting on the road. You never see such behaviour at The Joiners; it is 

comparatively a bastion of calm and decorum upon closing time. 

Personally speaking I currently work within the bar industry which means many late finishes. The same is 

true of retail and other sectors. The other local gay establishment The George and Dragon closes at 

midnight. If the Joiners' license is revoked where locally will I be able to unwind after work and enjoy a 

drink with like-minded people and friends? As I have aforementioned the gay scenes elsewhere simply don't 

connect with me. I think there are many others out there who would be at a similar loss, to something so 

significant being taken away from their lives. 

Page 108



�

I cannot state emphatically enough the importance of The Joiner's Arms' license remaining the same. Any 

change would remove something incredibly important from the London gay scene, the local community, me 

personally but also from those young people in the future who, like me, feel like they don't fit in elsewhere--

but would at Joiners. Please don't take that away. 

Yours 

Jake Sanderswood 

Page 109



Appendix 15

Page 110



�

��������	
��

���� ��������	
���

����� �������	
���������� !

�� "��
�����

��� #���$�%��&
�

�������� '()*+''+�,�-."/0+,��0����+,.-'�/-*'�"+1.,'.�-.2+.3

������������ ����
���/����-
&�
��'4	���������5678�.94����$�/��������'
������� :�567

Dear Ms Driver 
I attach the submission of Rainbow Hamlets to the Licensing Committee in relation to the Police review of 
the license of The Joiners Arms. Submitted in time and to the address Ms Driver specified earlier today. It 
consists of two PDF files: our letter and Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, to which we refer. 

If you have any questions about the submission or any technical issues, please contact me. 

Yours sincerely,  

Jack Gilbert 
Chair,  
Rainbow Hamlets 

Page 111



Thursday 17 October 2013

Sent by email as instructed to licensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk

cc: kathy.driver@towerhamlets.gov.uk

Dear License Committee Chair,

Letter in response to MPS application to review licensing hours of The Joiners Arms

We are writing to raise a strong concern in relation to the license review of The Joiners Arms. 

Several thousand people have now signed in person and online a petition opposing the police 

application. We argue that the Licensing Committee in exercising its duties must be made 

aware of this. In order to be able to fulfill its public sector equality duty, and its duties to foster 

good relations and promote understanding, it needs to consider the potential impact of its 

decision on LGBT community life and LGBT community tensions.

An officer indicated that this was not relevant. We draw the committee’s attention to Section 149 

of the Equality Act 2010, which we append to this email. 

The Joiners Arms  is a long standing LGBT-identified venue, supporting LGBT arts, heritage and 

culture from East London Pride, to frescos by award-winning cartoonist David Shenton to a gay 

cockney heritage programme with LBTH Local History Archive and Library. They have a long 

history of working to combat hate crime and contributing to local initiatives to create a safe 

place for LGBT people. They are also members of the local pub watch. They clearly have a 

longstanding commitment to local community safety. They have a mixed clientele, including 

people who identify as heterosexual, LGBT, and men who have sex with men. 

It came as a shock to discover the number of co-located incidents contained in the review, and 

this had not been raised with us at any stage. This was clearly a potential LGBT-related critical 

incident from the point of view of both individual / community safety and the venue itself. 

Whether the balance of trouble-making customers on a particular night are gay or straight is not 

relevant, because the venue identifies itself very clearly.

In other words the policing of this situation was bound to have an impact on trust and 

confidence (particularly younger) LGBT people have in the police, and that would impact on the 

reporting of hate crime and domestic abuse. Poor policing practice can increase the level of 

unreported crime and the risk faced by same sex victims of domestic abuse.

Indeed it is clear from the report that the police did not enjoy a trusted relationship with several 

victims. 

Several victims of apparent same sex DV were even left without any support in place. From their 

account the police have not pursued any partnership-based approaches to address these 

issues, which we can determine. As part of their concern relates to apparent domestic abuse/

violence, personal and property safety, and alcohol abuse issues linked to late night opening, a 

partnership approach would have been both good practice and proportional.

Charity registration no: 1152747 | Company registration no: 08139446
Page 112



We believe the failure to involve the LGBT community forum, or to involve partner organisations 

and services, or to address clear indications of vulnerability, are serious omissions in the 

policing of this venue. 

Uncharacteristically, this represents a clear breach by the MPS of their duty to “have due regard 

to the need to:-  a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation …. c) foster good relations 

between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.”, 

and of MPS guidelines in dealing with a critical incident. 

If they had been more communitarian in their approach many of these issues could have been 

dealt with much earlier.

We recognise that there are significant issues that need to be addressed, and that all venues 

must comply with the Licensing Objectives set out in the Licensing Act 2003. All venues must be 

safe places for staff and customers alike. However, we are yet to be satisfied either that this is a 

proportionate response compared to other venues of a similar nature nearby, or that measures 

short of those that would lead to the closure of the venue have been fully explored.  

The Joiners Arms is an important community resource, and a key location for us to reach 

younger members of the LGBT community. In November we are announcing hate crime and 

domestic abuse support and advocacy services, and see this venue as a key access point for 

outreach to potentially vulnerable victims. It will be harder to reach these people and offer them 

services they need without this venue. This would leave them potentially  more vulnerable and 

at risk.

In conclusion:

• We urge the Licensing Committee to ensure they have considered the impact on LGBT 

community life and tensions. 

• We believe that the failure of the MPS to show due regard to community and partnership 

aspects of the policing of this venue, and in particular their failure, against MPS guidelines, to 

seek independent advice in relation to a critical incident, should in itself cause the Committee 

to pause and consider other options to address the issues. 

• We do not believe that taking steps that would make the venue unviable would serve well 

either LGBT people or the borough as a whole.

Yours sincerely,

Jack Gilbert, 

Chairperson 

NOTE This letter is written at short notice and without the opportunity for a round table 

conversation with the venue and other agencies. Should such conversations prove fruitful a 

more detailed submission would be made subsequently. 

  

Charity registration no: 1152747 | Company registration no: 08139446
Page 113



17/10/2013 22:19Equality Act 2010

Page 1 of 2http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/section/149

Help Site Map Accessibility Contact Us Cymraeg

Title: Year: Number: Type: All Legislation (excluding draft)

Changes to legislation:

149 Public sector equality duty

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to—

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or

under this Act;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and

persons who do not share it;

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who

do not share it.

(2) A person who is not a public authority but who exercises public functions must, in the exercise of those

functions, have due regard to the matters mentioned in subsection (1).

(3) Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need

to—

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant protected characteristic

that are connected to that characteristic;

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic that are

different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any

other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

(4) The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from the needs of persons who

are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities.

(5) Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected

characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to—

(a) tackle prejudice, and

(b) promote understanding.

(6) Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more favourably than others; but

that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act.

(7) The relevant protected characteristics are—

age;

disability;

gender reassignment;

pregnancy and maternity;

race;

religion or belief;

PROSPECTIVE

Advanced Search

Equality Act 2010

2010 c. 15  Part 11 Chapter 1 Section 149

Status: This version of this provision is prospective.

There are outstanding changes not yet made by the legislation.gov.uk editorial team to Equality Act 2010. Any changes that have already been made

by the team appear in the content and are referenced with annotations.

View outstanding changes

legislation.gov.uk
The National Archives

Home About Us Browse Legislation New Legislation Changes To Legislation Search Legislation

Search

Table of Contents Content Explanatory Notes More Resources

Previous: Provision Next: Provision Plain View Print Options

Page 114



17/10/2013 22:19Equality Act 2010

Page 2 of 2http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/section/149

sex;

(8) A reference to conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act includes a reference to—

(a) a breach of an equality clause or rule;

(b) a breach of a non-discrimination rule.

(9) Schedule 18 (exceptions) has effect.

sexual orientation.

© Crown copyright
Back to top

All content is available under the Open Government Licence v2.0 except where otherwise stated

Previous: Provision Next: Provision

Page 115



Appendix 16   

Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Appendix 17

Page 119



The Joiners Arms 

‘Little Gem In The East’

BY TOM HOWARD 

“White-collar conservative flashin’ down the street, pointing that plastic finger 
at me. They all assume my kind will drop and die, but I’m gonna wave my 
freak flag high!”  

– Song lyrics from If 6 Was 9 by Jimi Hendrix 

So you’ve arrived in London and just like the brochure suggested, it’s a cold 
and overcast afternoon promising rain. With a shiny Oyster card in hand, a
confusing tube system to navigate and a frightfully small room to rent above 
an off licence in Hackney waiting, I was scared to say the least. 

Enter the “London Blues”, a cruel side effect that my friends from Australia 
had warned me about. “It takes a year before you’ll enjoy London,” they had 
warned. “You can always just come home!” What a terrible period of 
adjustment it was. London was either going to make or break me. 

This was my situation. I was for the better part of last year alone and it was 
hard. I cried a lot. I missed my mother. I listened to The Smiths on repeat. 
Even after securing a token hospitality job, I still found myself blowing around 
(amid the wind and rain) privately asking myself as to where this exciting city 
was hiding all her secrets? Where were those beautiful creatures I’d seen 
plastered throughout the social pages of the i-D magazines I’d read as a 
teenager? 

Page 120



Enter The Joiners Arms…  

The grey and unsympathetic world outside felt suddenly obsolete as I entered 
this colourful and diverse safe haven for the first time. It was as if some 
strange vortex had opened up beneath its blue neon signage on Hackney 
Road. Inside, a welcoming energy overcame me. The space glowed with 
heady warmth radiating from the floor upwards. Suddenly there was music 
and dancing and laughter. Suddenly there was hope. 

People here moved with an enthusiasm for life. They were unapologetically 
eccentric and youthful in their optimism. Their minds and bodies moved in 
sync with one another through their celebration of life, love and liberty.  

What struck me on that fateful Saturday night was the simple 
acknowledgement I received from others, which up until this point I’d been so 
hungry for. That invisible person sitting alone on the tube was suddenly 
treated to a compassionate energy so genuine I’d almost forgotten what it felt 
like.  

From the first smile I was greeted with when I paid my £5 entry (bargain) to 
the organic continuation of friendliness and inclusion from bar staff, security 
and patrons alike. There was no question in my mind that at that very moment 
I had fallen in love with The Joiners Arms. I had fallen in love with London. 

So a relationship with The Joiners (as she is commonly referred to) thus 
blossomed… 

I met friends, lovers and locals. Then art dealers, musicians and mothers. 
There were boys that dressed like girls and girls that dressed like boys and 
everything else in between. Those of us who had slipped through the cracks 
of a conservative system were upholding by default a level of respect and 
tolerance for one another that we’d always felt entitled to. That’s the most 
precious thing about The Joiners to me. How in Shoreditch (an area 
celebrated for its pretentious nightspots notorious for denying patronage 
without membership or otherwise) did this oasis exist? 

As I see it, The Joiners is unique in the sense that it doesn’t operate strictly as 
a business relying on the support of patrons but more so as a venue FOR the 
patrons. It’s a nurturing environment where a diverse assortment of 
Londoners, (not strictly identifying as gay, lesbian or otherwise) are 
encouraged to express themselves in a space where they actually feel 
comfortable in doing so. As owner David Pollard points out, The Joiners is 
“still not a place impressed by people who are, but a place where people can 
enjoy who everybody is.” 
 
And now all of this goodness is being compromised… 

 

 

 

Page 121



A review of the licence at The Joiners Arms resulting (in a reduced licence) 
has the potential to threaten not only the financial/operating costs of the 
establishment but sends a very clear message to the community of patrons 
who rely on it as not just their local, but as their home. Such action puts a 
black mark on one of London’s best-kept secrets and sends a clear message 
to my friends and I that we are NOT WELCOME! 

The venue holds far more importance as simply a social setting for the local 
community. Just the slightest mention of The Joiners in conversation will 
rouse a smile from even the most hardened East Londoner. The 
establishment is iconic. It is loved and adored by its patrons (infrequent or 
loyal) who flourish between its walls.  

As Pollard articulates beautifully about his treasured venue, “what can be said 
is that we are still trying to be a home to the joyful sinner, still trying to bend 
the harsh reality of the world in which we operate to promote life, love, liberty, 
still encouraging good, preferably dirty, fun. Especially fun.” 

Governments spend a lot of money and time on community development.  
The purpose being to support social inclusion ahead of towering economic 
costs and health care that result when people are socially disconnected. It is 
well known that people all do better when they are connected to other people.  

So why threaten a venue that by principle brings a community together before 
it even considers a profit margin? Social interaction has a huge impact on 
emotional health and wellbeing and needs to be constantly nurtured. Without 
it, children, individuals, families, isolated elderly people, neighbourhoods, 
communities and the economy all suffer. 

So, do the right thing and put this nonsensical review to rest. The violent and 
grotesque behaviour that takes place most evenings on Shoreditch High 
Street is a far cry from what little impact The Joiners has on local community. 
By contrast we misbehave appropriately and without the intention of harming 
others.  

Where things require improvement, let improvement be made. Tightening a 
grip around this venue will in turn tear people apart. It is in essence, a simple 
principle of doing what is right for the people. 

I propose that those in control of instigating such changes to the licensing act 
should purely for experimental reasons (or better still a good time) make the 
journey down to The Joiners on a Saturday night. Take a moment to scan the 
room momentarily and listen carefully to what you actually feel inside. Any 
rational minded person will see that any decision threatening the sanctuary 
(and future) of this little gem in the east is inherently wrong and unjust. 

 

The Joiners Arms is located at 116-118 Hackney Road in East London, E2 7QL 

 

Page 122



Appendix 18

Page 123



�

���������	�


��� ���������	� �

���� ���������������������

�� ����� ���

������� !���"����� �#�� 


�		������
	�� $����%�&'


	��������� ���'����

Hello, 

I'm writing regarding the possible change of license considered towards The Joiner's Arms. This place is not 

only a bar, but a historical institution of East London, known worldwide for its defense of gay rights and for 

being itself a place where gay, lesbian, transgender, bisexual, queer, and straight people can find fun, shelter 

and a safe place to enjoy and socialize. Not often a mere bar turns into such social element as Joiners does, 

and that is because of its nature, its spirit and the hard work of the staff, and the customers, for making it a 

better, safer, and warming place everyday. 

Not much more to say, I know you would be receiving loads of emails these days regarding this topic, just 

keep in mind how many other bars would have their customers defending it with such strength, confidence 

and peace. 

I am not asking for anything, as I know my will is not going to change a political action, but, I am just 

letting you know, as a simple customer, what this place means to me for your own consideration and 

evaluation. 

Thank you very much. 

Jose María Díaz Filgueira. 

Page 124



Appendix 19   

Page 125



�

���������	�


��� ��������	�
�� �

���� ���������������������

�� ����
��
�

������� � ��!��
����"���

To the Tower Hamlets. 

I am writing this email in support of "The Joiners Arms cause".  

May I just say, to start, that if the petition of reducing the opening hours up to 00:30am is because of "Crime 

and Disorder" I find that a ridiculous reason. I am a regular costumer at the Joiners Arms, I normally go 

during the weekends or a bit during the week after work, and I can firmly say that I have never ever felt not 

secure because of any crime or disorder. Security there is strict, and has always quickly stopped any kind of 

disorder immediately, so none could even realise. Even they are the ones asking us not to be loud when we 

leave the place quite late, in order not to disturb the neighbours.  

And now let me just make you reconsider how important The Joiners Arms is as an institution. As a an 

artistic temple where everyone's been through all these years. It's going to sound silly, but when I first move 

to London the first thing they told me was: "Oh, don't forget to go to Hackney Road and ask for a bar called 

The Joiners Arms". And after two years living here I really know why. I'm pretty sure there will once be a 

book or movie about this place. It's iconic. 

And David Alexander Pollard, the owner, I can tell you that he has helped and saved more lives than anyone 

else. And us, the ones who LOVE The Joiners Arms, we all are willing to do whatever it takes to keep it 

open. Just ask... But please, you cannot just shut the place down. There's too many lives going on there. 

Thank you very much for your attention. 

Yours sincerely, 

Mario Pulini. 

Page 126



Appendix 20

Page 127



�

���������	�


��� ��������	�
��

���� �����
���������������

�� ���������

�������  ���!�������"�	�

To Whom it May Concern . The Joiners Arms is a wonderful place that me and a lot of my friends go to 

socialise . We sometimes go on a tuesday , wednesday and thursday . I have never known there to be any 

trouble or outrageously noisy behaviour .  

  its a great place for us to go and have a drink and a chat .... much more than to be noisy or cause trouble .  

  The Joiners feels they would lose a lot of business if the new proposed 12:30 am finish time comes into 

effect .  

  Its a culturally important place , where lots of people feel a sense of community . Its like a second home .  

  Please reconsider this new licensing .  

Many thanks  

Page 128



Appendix 21

Page 129



�

���������	�


��� ���������� �

���� ���������������������

�� ���������

������� �������� ����������������!��"�������������� �����#�������$���%�&��'����(��)���*�

Dear Sirs 

Notice of intention to review the license of the Joiners Arms, Hackney Rd E2 7QL

Further to your decision to undertake the above, I would like to register my support in favour of the Joiners 

Arms retaining its current licensing conditions. 

I understand this action has been precipitated by allegations that certain conditions of the licensing 

objectives are not being met. I would like to submit as evidence to the contrary my extensive acquaintance 

with the venue as a previous resident of Tower Hamlets and now of Hackney. 

In relation to the accusation of the premises harbouring crime and disorder, I highlight that in over five 

years of visiting the venue on at least a weekly basis, I have never been the victim of a crime in or around its 

immediate vicinity. This has to be in large part due to the extensive efforts the venue undertakes to employ 

committed and professional security staff who maintain the safety of the building and those inside. To the 

best of my best knowledge CCTV is in operation, there is a clear no-drugs policy, enforced through bag and 

person searches upon entering, and a lack of offers or deals on alcohol that implies a commitment to a 

responsible drinking policy. The Joiners Arms appears to take all reasonable steps to meet their duty to 

prevent crime and disorder as per the licensing objectives. 

I understand that some appeals to the Licensing Committee's recent decision to review the license have been 

rejected for not addressing the licensing objectives, citing that the 'nature' of the venue (presumably its 

commitment to diversity and the rights of LGBT citizens of Tower Hamlets to a safe environment in which 

to socialise) as irrelevant grounds for appeal. I have to object to this in part however. Section 6.4 of the 

Statement of Licensing Policy 2013-18 cites that in addition to the requirements for the Licensing Authority 

to promote the licensing objectives, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in the Borough. I am sure you are aware of the 

spate of homophobic attacks and instances of hate crime that have been increasing in the area over the past 

few years, including the particularly pernicious 'Gay-free zone' posters that appeared upon lamp-posts along 

Hackney Road. Dr Stepahnie Eaton, Tower Hamlets councillor, in response to these and other attacks, was 

quoted by the BBC as saying: 

'There is a real increase [in homophobic attacks] and it is worrying...People are being targeted and brutally 

beaten up...' 

Furthermore, having chaired a debate at the Joiners Arms itself in 2009, Councillor Eaton noted that 

'[p]eople were saying that the police were not willing to listen when people were reporting attacks.' The 

'nature' of the venue goes to the very heart of the first licensing objective, that of the prevention of crime 

and disorder, since demonstrably the Joiners Arms, rather than being a location where crime and disorder 

have flourished, has become a safe haven for members of the LGBT community and supporters of diversity 

in Tower Hamlets over and against the hate crime to which its supporters have been subjected. I therefore 

believe that any steps taken toward the closing of the Joiners Arms - which its organisers insist would be the 

case if this review were successful - would fundamentally undermine the licensing committee's duty under 

both s. 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1988 and the licensing statement to prevent crime and disorder in 

the community. The Joiners Arms has become a crucial landmark against hate crime in Tower Hamlets, and 

therefore ought to be the subject of council and police support, not review.  

Page 130



�

I understand that reference has also been made to the Joiners Arms' failing to prevent public nuisance. 

Section 10.2 of the borough's Statement states that concerns relating to noise nuisance from both the 

premises and customer egress, light pollution, noxious smells and disruption from parked vehicles will be 

duly regarded. The premises takes extensive steps, more extensive in fact that many bars in the area, to 

prevent noise pollution through double doors and noise-prevention plastic curtains, thereby also minimising 

light pollution. And indeed, anyone would be hard pushed from outside to identify music being played. 

Similarly, an organised taxi service is provided outside in an attempt to clear those leaving quickly and with 

minimal disturbance. The notion that revoking the Joiners Arms' license will reduce any alleged disturbance 

to residents is laughable: a one-minute stroll down Hackney Road brings you to the heart of Shoreditch, and 

in reality any late-night disturbance is attributable to the fact that Hackney Road is used by those 

frequenting Shoreditch and the surrounding areas on nights out. Any claim therefore that late-night 

'nuisance' will be diminished by revoking the current license stipulations of the Joiners Arms is both 

spurious and arbitrary. With due respect I suspect that there are some vexatious residents-turned-litigants 

who, perhaps understandably, object to the huge changes that have occurred to the area over the past ten 

years (though undeniably for the better), and that the Joiners Arms to some degree has become the 

unfortunate target of consistently frivolous and vexatious complaints (s. 23.6).  

Tower Hamlets council has a broad duty to promote diversity within its parameters, and I urge the panel to 

bear this in mind when considering both the serious threat posed to this duty by the current review, and of 

the consequent effects upon its duty to prevent crime and disorder in the area, of which homophobic hate-

crime has been the most serious and shocking in recent years. I suspect no resident complaints were made 

about the real threat of crime and disorder posed by the multiple homophobic attacks, including a stabbing 

in which a young man was paralysed, and the antisocial nuisance of 'Gay-free zone' posters polluting the 

community. I met my partner of the past four years at the Joiners Arms, and the premises has continued to 

provide us and our friends with a safe place in which to socialise without fear of prejudice or harm. Tower 

Hamlets ought to consider itself fortunate to boast within its vicinity an institution so committed to the spirit 

of the wider community.  

Yours faithfully 

Tim Lloyd 

Page 131



Appendix 22
Section 182 Guidance - June 2013

The review process

11.1 The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences 

and club premises certificates represent a key protection for the community 
where problems associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant 
or variation of a premises licence or club premises certificate.

11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises 

certificate, a responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing 
authority to review the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the 
premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.

11.3 An application for review may be made electronically, provided the 

licensing authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent written 
application. The licensing authority may also agree in advance that the 
application need not be given in writing. However, these applications are 

outside the formal electronic application process and may not be submitted 
via GOV.UK or the licensing authority’s electronic facility.

11.4 In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises 
to which it relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police 

based on nuisance or disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the 
authority the relevant notice of its determination, or if the police have made an 

application for summary review on the basis that premises are associated with 
serious crime and/or disorder.

11.5 Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a 
premises licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing 

authority may apply for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at 
premises and wants to intervene early without waiting for representations from 
other persons. However, it is not expected that licensing authorities should 

normally act as responsible authorities in applying for reviews on behalf of 
other persons, such as local residents or community groups. These 

individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for a licence or 
certificate in their own right if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable 
for licensing authorities to expect other responsible authorities to intervene 

where the basis for the intervention falls within the remit of that other 
authority. For example, the police should take appropriate steps where the 

basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder. Likewise, where
there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is reasonable to expect the local 
authority exercising environmental health functions for the area in which the 

premises are situated to make the application for review.

Page 132



11.6 Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible 
authority and applies for a review, it is important that a separation of 

responsibilities is still achieved in this process to ensure procedural fairness 
and eliminate conflicts of interest. As outlined previously in Chapter 9 of this 

Guidance, the distinct functions of acting as licensing authority and 
responsible authority should be exercised by different officials to ensure a 
separation of responsibilities. Further information on how licensing authorities 

should achieve this separation of responsibilities can be found in Chapter 9, 
paragraphs 9.13 to 9.19 of this Guidance.

11. Reviews
11.7 In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular 

premises in respect of which there is a premises licence or club premises 
certificate and must be relevant to the promotion of one or more of the 

licensing objectives. Following the grant or variation of a licence or certificate, 
a complaint regarding a general issue in the local area relating to the licensing 
objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) situation in a town centre, 

should generally not be regarded as a relevant representation unless it can be
positively tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which 

would allow for a proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a 
geographic cluster of complaints, including along transport routes related to 
an individual public house and its closing time, could give grounds for a 

review of an existing licence as well as direct incidents of crime and disorder 
around a particular public house.

11.8 Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints, 
the authority may consider whether these issues are the result of the 

cumulative impact of licensed premises within the area concerned. In such 
circumstances, the authority may also consider whether it would be 

appropriate to include a special policy relating to cumulative impact within its 
licensing policy statement. Further guidance on cumulative impact policies 
can be found in Chapter 13 of this Guidance.

11.9 Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the 

subsequent hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional representations 
which do not amount to an amplification of the original representation may not 
be made at the hearing. Representations may be made electronically, 

provided the licensing authority agrees and the applicant submits a 
subsequent written representation. The licensing authority may also agree in 

advance that the representation need not be given in writing.

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns 

about problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give 
licence holders early warning of their concerns and the need for improvement, 

and where possible they should advise the licence or certificate holder of the 
steps they need to take to address those concerns. A failure by the holder to 
respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a 

review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives
should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-

operation.

Page 133



11.11 If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a 

responsible authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, 
local business or trade association), before taking action the licensing 

authority must first consider whether the complaint being made is relevant, 
frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. Further guidance on determining whether a 
representation is frivolous or vexatious can be found in Chapter 9 of this 

Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10).

Repetitious grounds of review

11.12 A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to:

• a ground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in 
relation to the same premises licence or certificate which has already been 
determined; or

• representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises 
licence or certificate was granted; or

• representations which would have been made when the application for the 
premises licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of 
the prior issue of a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above 

grounds, a reasonable interval has not elapsed since that earlier review or 
grant.

11.13 Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent 

attempts to review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant 
of the licence following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing 
authority on an earlier occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to 

judge what should be regarded as a reasonable interval in these 
circumstances. However, it is recommended that more than one review

originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation to a 
particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on 
similar grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following 

a closure order.

11.14 The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does 
not apply to responsible authorities which may make more than one 
application for a review of a licence or certificate within a 12 month period.

11.15 When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a 

responsible authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure 
procedures described in Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), 
it must arrange a hearing. The arrangements for the hearing must follow the 

provisions set out in regulations. These regulations are published on the 
Government’s legislation website (www.legislation.gov.uk). It is particularly 

important that the premises licence holder is made fully aware of any 
representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence supporting the
representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal representative has 

therefore been able to prepare a response.

Page 134



Reviews arising in connection with crime

11.24 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not 

directly connected with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise 
because of drugs problems at the premises; money laundering by criminal 

gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen goods, or the sale of firearms. 
Licensing authorities do not have the power to judge the criminality or 
otherwise of any issue. This is a matter for the courts. The licensing

authority’s role when determining such a review is not therefore to establish 
the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the promotion of the 

crime prevention objective.

11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act 

and they are not part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no 
reason why representations giving rise to a review of a premises licence need 

be delayed pending the outcome of any criminal proceedings. Some reviews 
will arise after the conviction in the criminal courts of certain individuals, but 
not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to determine whether the 

problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on the premises 
and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review 

follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt 
to go beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of 
undisputed evidence before them.

11.26 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds 
that the premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to 
determine what steps should be taken in connection with the premises 

licence, for the promotion of the crime prevention objective. It is important to 
recognise that certain criminal activity or associated problems may be taking 

place or have taken place despite the best efforts of the licence holder and
the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with the 
conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing 

authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the 
problems. The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the 

promotion of the licensing objectives in the interests of the wider community 
and not those of the individual licence holder.

Page 135



11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with 
licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These are 

the use of the licensed premises:
• for the sale and distribution of Class A drugs and the laundering of the 

proceeds of drugs crime;
• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and 

music, which does considerable damage to the industries affected;
• for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts 

on the health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity 
for crime of young people;
• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;

• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;
• for knowingly employing a person who is unlawfully in the UK or who cannot 
lawfully be employed as a result of a condition on that person’s leave to enter;

• for unlawful gambling; and
• for the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police and other law 
enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the review 

procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise 
and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective is 

being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is 
expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be 
seriously considered.

Page 136



Appendix 23
June 2013 - Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003

Crime and disorder

2.1 Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of 
advice on crime and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP).

2.2 In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-

operate with the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and 
consider adding relevant conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA 
also plays an important role in preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that 

door supervisors are properly licensed and, in partnership with police and 
other agencies, that security companies are not being used as fronts for 

serious and organised criminal activity. This may include making specific
enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in 
conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. 

Similarly, the provision of requirements for door supervision may be 
appropriate to ensure that people who are drunk, drug dealers or people 

carrying firearms do not enter the premises and ensuring that the police are 
kept informed.

2.3 Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and 
disorder. For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder 

may take place, the presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras 
both inside and immediately outside the premises can actively deter disorder, 
nuisance, anti-social behaviour and crime generally. Some licence holders 

may wish to have cameras on their premises for the prevention of crime 
directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers. But any

condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to 
ensure that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that 
certain areas are properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over 

the terms of the condition.

2.4 The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be 
considered an appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs 
operating in city and town centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed 

premises. These systems allow managers of licensed premises to 
communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a rapid response to any 

disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on the premises.

Page 137



2.5 In the context of crime and disorder and public safety, the preservation of 
order on premises may give rise to genuine concerns about the ability of the 

management team with responsibility for the maintenance of order. This may 
occur, for example, on premises where there are very large numbers of 

people and alcohol is supplied for consumption, or in premises where there 
are public order problems.

2.6 Conditions relating to the management competency of designated 
premises supervisors should not normally be attached to premises licences. 

The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will usually be 
responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises 
licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind 

may only be justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be 
demonstrated that, in the circumstances associated with particular premises, 

poor management competency could give rise to issues of crime and disorder 
and public safety.

2.7 It will normally be the responsibility of the premises licence holder as an

employer, and not the licensing authority, to ensure that the managers 
appointed at the premises are competent and appropriately trained. However, 
licensing authorities must ensure that they do not stray outside their powers 

and duties under the 2003 Act. This is important to ensure the portability of 
the personal licence and the offences set out in the 2003 Act and to ensure, 

for example, that the prevention of disorder is in sharp focus for all managers, 
licence holders and clubs.

Page 138



Appendix 24
2013 - Licensing Policy Adopted by the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets

6 Crime and Disorder 
6.1 Licensed premises, especially those offering late night / early morning 

entertainment, alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of people, can be a 

source of crime and disorder problems. 

6.2 When addressing crime and disorder the applicant should initially identify any 

particular issues (having regard to their particular type of premises and / or 
activities) which are likely to adversely affect the promotion of the crime and 

disorder objective. Such steps as are required to deal with these identified issues 
should be included within the applications operating schedule. Where a Crime 

Prevention Officer from the Metropolitan Police makes recommendations for 

premises that relate to the licensing objectives, the operating schedule should 
normally incorporate the suggestions. 

6.3 Applicants are recommended to seek advice from Council Officers and the 
Police as well as taking into account, as appropriate, local planning and transport 

policies, with tourism, cultural and crime prevention strategies, when preparing 
their plans and Schedules. 

6.4 In addition to the requirements for the Licensing Authority to promote the 
licensing objectives, it also has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and 

Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in the 

Borough. 

6.5 The Licensing Authority, if its discretion is engaged, will consider attaching 

Conditions to licences and permissions to deter and prevent crime and disorder 
both inside and immediately outside the premises and these may include 

Conditions drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions relating to Crime and 
Disorder given in Section 182 of the Licensing Act 200. (See Appendix 2.) 

6.6 CCTV - The Licensing Authority, if its discretion is engaged, will attach 

conditions to licences, as appropriate where the conditions reflect local crime 

prevention strategies, for example the provision of closed circuit television 

cameras. 

Page 139



6.7 Touting - The Council has had a significant number of complaints relating to 

premises which are substantially or mainly restaurants where "touting" is a 
problem. Touting is soliciting for custom. Consequently, in relation to such 

premises the Licensing Authority, where its discretion is engaged will insert a 

standard condition that prohibits ‘touting’ as follows:-
1) No person shall be employed to solicit for custom or be permitted to solicit for 

custom for business for the premises in any public place within a 500 meters 
radius of the premises as shown edged red on the attached plan.( marked as 

Appendix -)

2) Clear Signage to be placed in the restaurant windows stating that the 

premises supports the Council’s ‘No Touting’ policy. 

6.8 Street Furniture - This would include Advertising Boards, they are 

sometimes placed in such a way as to be a nuisance to the public on the 
highway, or they encourage the consumption of alcohol in areas that are not 

licensed. The Licensing Authority expects applicants to have ensured that they 

fully comply with the Councils rules relating to authorisation of obstructions on the 
highway and a licence permission to place advertising boards or street furniture 

on the highway should normally have been obtained from Tower Hamlets 

Markets Service before an application for a licence is made. Where proportionate 
and appropriate, and its discretion is engaged, the Licensing Authority will impose 

conditions in relation to street seats and tables or boards, including on private 

land. 

6.9 Fly Posting - The Council has experienced significant problems with "fly 

posting" in relation to venues that offer entertainment. Fly posting is the 

unauthorised posting of posters / advertisements etc. Where it considers it 

appropriate and its discretion is engaged, the Licensing Authority will attach 
conditions relating to the control of fly posting to ensure that venues clearly 

prohibit all fly posting in their contract terms with others and they effectively 

enforce this control. 

6.10 Responsible Drinking - The Licensing Authority expects alcohol to be 

promoted in a responsible way in the Borough. This should incorporate relevant 

industry standards, such as the Portman Group. Where appropriate and 

proportionate, if its discretion is engaged, the Licensing Authority will apply 
conditions to ensure responsible drinking. The Licensing Authority also 

recognises the positive contribution to best practice that "Pubwatch" and other 

similar schemes can make to achieving the licensing objectives and is committed 
to working with them 

Model Pool Conditions from the Licensing Act 2003, Section 182 Guidance are in 
Appendix 2. 

6.11 Illicit Goods: Alcohol and Tobacco - The Licensing Authority will consider 

licence review applications where there is evidence that illicit alcohol has been 

offered for sale on the premises. Where other illicit goods, such as tobacco, have 
been found this may be considered by the Licensing Authority as evidence of 

poor management and have the potential to undermine the licensing objectives. 

Page 140



6.12 Illicit alcohol means alcohol that is, counterfeit, bears counterfeit duty 

stamps and or smuggled 

6.13 Illicit tobacco means, counterfeit, and/or non UK duty paid tobacco products. 

6.14 Illicit goods mean articles that are counterfeit, that do not comply with the 

classification and labelling requirements of the Video Recordings Acts and/or that 
breach other Trading Standards legislation such as consumer safety and unfair 

commercial practices. 

6.15 In particular the Licensing Authority is mindful of the advice provided in the 

guidance issued by the Home Office under section 182 of the Act “Reviews 

arising in connection with crime”.

6.16 The Licensing Authority will exercise its discretion to add a standard 
condition as follows:-

Smuggled goods 

1) The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for the 

purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-to-door sellers other 
than from established traders who provide full receipts at the time of delivery. 

2) The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought 
include the following details: 

I. Seller’s name and address 
II. Seller’s company details, if applicable 

III. Seller’s VAT details, if applicable 

IV. Vehicle registration detail, if applicable 

3) Legible copies of the documents referred to in 2) shall be retained on the 

premises and made available to officers on request. 

4) The trader shall obtain and use a UV detection device to verify that duty 

stamps are valid. 

5) Where the trader becomes aware that any alcohol may be not duty paid they 
shall inform the Police of this immediately. Effective 1st November 2013 

Page 141



Appendix 25
June 2013 - Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of 

the Licensing Act 2003

Public nuisance

2.18 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, 
through representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and 

what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific 
premises licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore important that 

in considering the promotion of this licensing objective, licensing authorities 
and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the licensable activities at 
the specific premises on persons living and working (including those carrying 

on business) in the area around the premises which may be disproportionate 
and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light 

pollution, noxious smells and litter.

2.19 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of 

legislation. It is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its 
broad common law meaning. It is important to remember that the prevention 

of public nuisance could therefore include low level nuisance, perhaps 
affecting a few people living locally, as well as major disturbance affecting the 
whole community. It may also include in appropriate circumstances the 

reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of other persons 
living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public nuisance may 

also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and 
insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

2.20 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps 
appropriate to control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might 

be achieved by a simple measure such as ensuring that doors and windows 
are kept closed after a particular time, or more sophisticated measures like 
the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker mounts. Any conditions 

appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to 
the type, nature and characteristics of the specific premises. Licensing 

authorities should be aware of the need to avoid inappropriate or
disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to the 
community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are very 

expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden 
for smaller venues.

Page 142



2.21 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be 
appropriate in certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation 

adequately protect those living in the area of the premises. But as stated 
earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing authorities and responsible 

authorities should be one of prevention and when their powers
are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other 
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant 

representations and additional conditions may be appropriate.

2.22 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate 
conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, 
music noise from premises usually occurs from mid-evening until either late-

evening or early-morning when residents in adjacent properties may be 
attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. In certain circumstances, conditions 

relating to noise immediately surrounding the premises may also prove 
appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and 
leave.

2.23 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright 

lighting outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime 
and disorder may itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. 
Applicants, licensing authorities and responsible authorities will need to 

balance these issues.

2.24 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters 
for the personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who 
engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it 

would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, 
following relevant representations, that requires the licence holder or club to 

place signs at the exits from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until 
they leave the area and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a 
peaceful night.

Page 143



Appendix 26
2013 - London Borough of Tower Hamlets Policy in relation to the 
Prevention of Public Nuisance

10 Prevention of Nuisance 
10.1 Licensed premises, especially those operating late at night and in the early 

hours of the morning, can cause a range of nuisances impacting on people living, 

working or sleeping in the vicinity of the premises. 

10.2 The concerns mainly relate to noise nuisance both from the premises and 
customer egress, light pollution, noxious smells and disruption from parked 

vehicles and due regard will be taken of the impact these may have in 

considering a licence. The Licensing Authority will expect Operating Schedules to 
satisfactorily address these issues. Applicants are advised to seek advice from 

the Council’s Environmental Health Officers before preparing their plans and 

Schedules. 

10.3 The Licensing Authority, where its discretion is engaged, will consider, 
where appropriate, attaching conditions to licences and permissions to prevent 

the problems identified in 8.2, and these may include conditions drawn from the 

Model Pool of Conditions in Appendix 2. 

Page 144



Appendix 27

Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Appendix 28

Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



Page 407



Page 408



Page 409



Page 410



Page 411



Page 412



Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



Page 416



Page 417



Page 418



Page 419



Page 420



Page 421



Page 422



Page 423



Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST
	3 RULES OF PROCEDURE
	4 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	Draft Lic Sub Committee Minutes - 6 Nov 13
	Draft Lic Sub Committee Minutes - 06 Nov 13 - 5pm
	LSC_121113_Draft Minutes v1.dot
	Draft Lic Sub Committee Minutes - 20 Nov 13

	5.1 Application to Review the Premises Licence for Joiners Arms, 116 - 118 Hackney Road, London E2 7QL
	Joiners Arms Appendices Only
	Supporting Documments


